
Town of Surfside 
Special Town Commission Meeting 

AGENDA 
September 18, 2017 

 6 p.m.  
Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 

Surfside, FL  33154 

Rule 7.05 Decorum.  Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes 
boisterous while addressing the commission shall be barred from further appearance before the 
commission by the presiding officer, unless permission to continue or again address the 
commission is granted by the majority vote of the commission members present. No clapping, 
applauding, heckling or verbal outbursts in support or opposition to a speaker or his or her 
remarks shall be permitted. Signs or placards may be disallowed in the commission chamber by 
the presiding officer. Persons exiting the commission chambers shall do so quietly. 

Rule 6.05 Agenda. The good and welfare portion of the agenda set for 8:15 p.m. shall be restricted 
to discussion on subjects not already specifically scheduled on the agenda for discussion and 
debate. In no event shall this portion of the agenda be allotted more than 45 minutes with each 
speaker to be given no more than three minutes, unless by vote of a majority of the members of the 
commission present, it is agreed to extend the time frames. Likewise, commission members shall be 
restricted to speaking three minutes each unless an extension is granted in the same manner as set 
forth in the prior sentence.  

Any person who received compensation, remuneration or expenses for conducting lobbying 
activities is required to register as a lobbyist with the Town Clerk prior to engaging in lobbying 
activities per Town Code Sec. 2-235.  "Lobbyist" specifically includes the principal, as defined in 
this section, as well as any agent, officer or employee of a principal, regardless of whether such 
lobbying activities fall within the normal scope of employment of such agent, officer or employee. 
The term "lobbyist" specifically excludes any person who only appears as a representative of a 
not-for-profit corporation or entity (such as charitable organization, a trade association or trade 
union), without special compensation or reimbursement for the appearance, whether direct, 
indirect, or contingent, to express support or opposition to any item. 

Per Miami Dade County Fire Marshal, the Commission Chambers has a maximum capacity of 99 
people.  Once reached this capacity, people will be asked to watch the meeting from the first floor. 

* Denotes agenda items as “must haves” which means there will be significant impacts if the
item is not addressed tonight.  If these items have not been heard by 10 p.m., the order of the
agenda will be changed to allow them to be heard.



Agenda 
 Special Commission Meeting 

September 18, 2017 

2 

1. Opening

A. Call to Order
B. Roll Call of Members
C. Pledge of Allegiance
D. Mayor and Commission Remarks – Mayor Daniel Dietch
E. Agenda and Order of Business Additions, deletions and linkages
F. Community Notes – Mayor Daniel Dietch

2. Quasi-Judicial Hearings (None)

3. Consent Agenda (Set for approximately 7:30 p.m.)
All items on the consent agenda are considered routine or status reports by the Town
Commission and will be approved by one motion.  Any Commission member may request
that an item be removed from the Consent Agenda and discussed separately.

Recommended Motion:  To approve all consent agenda items as presented below.

A. Minutes –  Sandra Novoa, MMC, Town Clerk
 July 11, 2017 Budget Meeting Minutes
 July 11, 2017 Special Commission Meeting – Quasi-Judicial Hearing

Minutes
 July 11, 2017 Regular Commission Meeting Minutes

*B. Town Manager’s Report – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager

1. See Click Fix
2. Interlocal Shuttle Update
3. Development Application Status
4. Miami-Dade County League of Cities Meeting
5. Code Compliance
6. Finance
7. Information Technology
8. Police Department

*C. Town Attorney’s Report – Weiss Serota, Town Attorney

D. Committee Reports – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager

- May 2, 2017 Pension Board Meeting
- June 29, 2017 Sustainability Subcommittee Meeting Minutes
- June 29, 2017 Planning and Zoning and Design Review Board Meeting Minutes



Agenda 
 Special Commission Meeting 

September 18, 2017 

3 

E. Strategic Miami Area Rapid Transit (SMART) Plan Resolution – Guillermo
Olmedillo, Town Manager

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSIONER OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA ENDORSING AND SUPPORTING THE EXPANSION
OF THE NEW STARTS TRANSIT PROGRAM (NSTP) TO FACILITATE
FUNDING FOR THE STRATEGIC MIAMI AREA RAPID TRANSIT
(SMART) PLAN; PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE

4. Ordinances
(Set for approximately _N/A_ p.m.)   (Note:  Good and Welfare must begin at 8:15)

A. Second Reading Ordinances

(Set for approximately __7:45__ p.m.) (Note:  Good and Welfare must begin at 8:15) 

B. First Reading Ordinances

1. Pension Ordinance adopting Chapter 185 minimum benefits for police
officers along with other changes to the ordinance – Guillermo Olmedillo,
Town Manager

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE V, DIVISION 2 
OF THE CODE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE REGARDING THE 
RETIREMENT PLAN FOR EMPLOYEES OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE; AMENDING SECTION 2-171 OF THE TOWN CODE TO 
CLARIFY THE DEFINITION OF THE TERM SENIOR 
MANAGEMENT EMPLOYEE; AMENDING SECTION 2-175(d) OF 
THE TOWN CODE TO PROVIDE FOR ONE ACTUARIAL BUYBACK 
CALCULATION TO DETERMINE THE COST OF MILITARY OR 
PRIOR LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICE; AMENDING SECTION 2-
176(b) OF THE TOWN CODE TO PROVIDE FOR EARLY 
RETIREMENT FOR POLICE MEMBERS AT AGE 50 WITH TEN 
YEARS OF SERVICE; AMENDING SECTION 2-176(c)(2) OF THE 
TOWN CODE TO PROVIDE FOR A TEN YEAR CERTAIN AND LIFE 
BENEFIT AS THE NORMAL FORM OF BENEFIT FOR POLICE 
MEMBERS; AMENDING SECTION 2-177(c) OF THE TOWN CODE TO 
PROVIDE FOR OPTIONAL FORMS OF BENEFITS FOR POLICE 
MEMBERS; AMENDING SECTION 2-178(a) OF THE TOWN CODE TO 
PROVIDE FOR MINIMUM DEATH BENEFITS FOR POLICE 
MEMBERS; AMENDING SECTION 2-189(e)(2)a. AND (e)(4) OF THE 
TOWN CODE TO PROVIDE FOR MINIMUM DISABILITY BENEFITS 



Agenda 
 Special Commission Meeting 

September 18, 2017 

4 

FOR POLICE MEMBERS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

2. Crossover of the Dune – Sarah Sinatra, Town Planner

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING CHAPTER 90 “ZONING”, 
SECTION 90-37 “SPECIAL EXCEPTIONS,” TO PROVIDE A SPECIAL 
EXCEPTION APPROVAL PROCESS AND RELATED CRITERIA FOR 
DUNE CROSSOVERS; AND BY AMENDING SECTION 90-60 
“CONSTRUCTION ADJACENT TO BULKHEAD LINES” TO PERMIT 
DUNE CROSSOVERS ONLY IF APPROVED BY SPECIAL 
EXCEPTION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

3. Amending Article VI. – “Rules of Procedure for Town Meetings” -
Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING ARTICLE VI. - “RULES OF 
PROCEDURE FOR TOWN MEETINGS”; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

4. Water, Sewer and Stormwater Rate Adjustment – Guillermo Olmedillo,
Town Manager

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 78 “UTILITIES” OF 
THE TOWN CODE; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING 
FOR INCORPORATON OF RECITALS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 



Agenda 
 Special Commission Meeting 

September 18, 2017 

5 

5. Resolutions and Proclamations
(Set for approximately __9:00__ p.m.)  (Note: Depends upon length of Good and 
Welfare) 

A. Four Year Staggered Terms for the Town Commission and Retain Two Year
Term for the Mayor – Commissioner Michael Karukin

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, CALLING FOR A MARCH 20, 2018 TOWN OF
SURFSIDE SPECIAL ELECTION, FOR THE PURPOSE OF
SUBMITTING TO THE ELECTORATE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE,
FLORIDA, A  PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE TOWN CHARTER
CONCERNING SECTION 5 - “NUMBER; SELECTION; TERM”,
SECTION 8 -“PRESIDING OFFICERS”, AND SECTION 105 -
“GENERAL AND SPECIAL ELECTIONS OF COMMISSION
MEMBERS”, AS PRESENTED  IN A BALLOT QUESTION ON
AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN CHARTER  “ESTABLISHING FOUR-
YEAR STAGGERED TERMS FOR COMMISSIONERS AND RETAINING
MAYOR’S TWO- YEAR TERM” COMMENCING WITH TOWN’S
GENERAL ELECTION IN 2020; PROVIDING FOR THE TOWN CLERK
TO UTILIZE THE SERVICES OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY
SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS FOR THE SPECIAL ELECTION;
PROVIDING FOR CHARTER AMENDMENT ELECTION
PROCEDURES AND RELATED DETAILS; PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

B. Employee Health Benefits Contract Renewal for FY 2017-2018 – Guillermo
Olmedillo, Town Manager

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, APPROVING GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE
COVERAGE WITH AETNA, DENTAL AND VISION COVERAGE WITH
GUARDIAN, AND TERM LIFE INSURANCE, ACCIDENTAL DEATH,
SHORT TERM DISABILITY, AND LONG TERM DISABILITY WITH
MUTUAL OF OMAHA;  TERMINATING THE PRIOR PAYMENT
AGREEMENT WITH THE TOWN’S INSURANCE BROKER, ADAMS
BENEFIT, AND ACCEPTING THE PAYMENT TERMS WITH ADAMS
BENEFIT INCORPORATED AS PART OF THE AETNA FEE
ARRANGEMENT; PROVIDING FOR APPROVAL AND
AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.



Agenda 
 Special Commission Meeting 

September 18, 2017 

6 

C. Tyler Technologies ERP Software System - Guillermo Olmedillo, Town
Manager

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AWARDING RFP NO. 2015-001 FOR A TURN
KEY ENTERPRISE RESOURCE PLANNING SOFTWARE SOLUTION
TO TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC.; APPROVING A SOFTWARE AS A
SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC. FOR A
FIVE YEAR INITIAL TERM IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED
$556,285; PROVIDING FOR APPROVAL AND AUTHORIZATION;
PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

D. Beach Renourishment Funding Urging Resolution – Mayor Daniel Dietch

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, URGING THE FLORIDA LEGISLATURE TO
APPROPRIATE FUNDS FOR BEACH RENOURISHMENT PROJECTS;
SUPPORTING SENATE BILL 174; PROVIDING FOR TRANSMITTAL;
PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING FOR
INCORPORATON OF RECITALS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

E. Fulfillment of Amortized Cost for Recycling Containers as per Interlocal
Agreement – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE FROM THE 2016-
2017 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF $16,041.60;
PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN
EFFECTIVE DATE.

F. Request to Release Covenant Restricting Property Use for 200 96th Street
(the “Property”) – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, APPROVING THE RELEASE OF A COVENANT
BURDENING 200 96TH STREET; VERIFYING THE PROPERTY STATUS
SUBSEQUENT TO RELEASE OF THE COVENANT; PROVIDING FOR
RESTORATION OF THE PROPERTY; PROVIDING FOR
IMPLEMENTATION; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

6. Good and Welfare (Set for approximately 8:15 p.m.)



Agenda 
 Special Commission Meeting 

September 18, 2017 

7 

Public comments for subjects or items not on the agenda.  Public comment on agenda 
items will be allowed when agenda item is discussed by the Commission. 

7. Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports
Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports have been moved to the Consent Agenda –
Item 3.
All items on the Consent Agenda are considered routine or status reports by the Town
Commission and will be approved by one motion.  Any Commission member may
request that an item be removed from  the consent agenda and discussed separately.

8. Unfinished Business and New Business

9. Mayor, Commission and Staff Communications

A. Walkability and Pedestrian Improvements Trial Update – Guillermo Olmedillo,
Town Manager

B. Discussion Regarding Regulation of Medical Marijuana Dispensaries –
Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager

C. Elimination of the Sustainability Sub Committee and transferring responsibility
to Planning and Zoning (P&Z) Board – Commissioner Michael Karukin

D. Design Review Board Vacancy (Verbal) – Sandra Novoa, MMC, Town Clerk
E. Texting While Driving Urging Resolution – Mayor Daniel Dietch

10. Adjournment

  Respectfully submitted, 

Guillermo Olmedillo 
Town Manager 

THIS MEETING IS OPEN TO THE PUBLIC.  IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE AMERICANS WITH 
DISABILITIES ACT OF 1990, ALL PERSONS THAT ARE DISABLED; WHO NEED SPECIAL 
ACCOMMODATIONS TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS MEETING BECAUSE OF THAT DISABILITY 
SHOULD CONTACT THE OFFICE OF THE TOWN CLERK AT 305-861-4863 EXT. 226 NO LATER 
THAN FOUR DAYS PRIOR TO SUCH PROCEEDING.   

IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 286.0105, FLORIDA STATUTES, 
ANYONE WISHING TO APPEAL ANY DECISION MADE BY THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE 
COMMISSION, WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING OR 
HEARING, WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS AND FOR SUCH PURPOSE, MAY 
NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE WHICH 
RECORD SHALL INCLUDE THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO 
BE BASED. 



Agenda 
 Special Commission Meeting 

September 18, 2017 

8 

AGENDA ITEMS MAY BE VIEWED AT THE OFFICE OF THE TOWN CLERK, TOWN OF SURFSIDE 
TOWN HALL, 9293 HARDING AVENUE.  ANYONE WISHING TO OBTAIN A COPY OF ANY 
AGENDA ITEM SHOULD CONTACT THE TOWN CLERK AT 305-861-4863.  A COMPLETE 
AGENDA PACKET IS ALSO AVAILABLE ON THE TOWN WEBSITE AT www.townofsurfsidefl.gov. 

TWO OR MORE MEMBERS OF OTHER TOWN BOARDS MAY ATTEND THIS MEETING. 

THESE MEETINGS MAY BE CONDUCTED BY MEANS OF OR IN CONJUNCTION WITH 
COMMUNICATIONS MEDIA TECHNOLOGY, SPECIFICALLY, A TELEPHONE CONFERENCE 
CALL.  THE LOCATION 9293 HARDING AVENUE, SURFSIDE, FL  33154, WHICH IS OPEN TO THE 
PUBLIC, SHALL SERVE AS AN ACCESS POINT FOR SUCH COMMUNICATION. 

http://www.townofsurfsidefl.gov/


Town of Surfside 
Town Special Commission Meeting 

Proposed Budget 
MINUTES 

July 11, 2017 
 5 p.m.  

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

1. Opening

A. Call to Order
Mayor Dietch called the meeting to order at 5:06 p.m. 

B. Roll Call of Members 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa called the roll with the following members present:  
Mayor Dietch, Commissioner Gielchinsky, Commissioner Karukin and 
Commissioner Paul.  Vice Mayor Cohen was absent. 

C. Pledge of Allegiance 
Chief David Allen led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

D. Presentation/Overview of FY 17/18 Budget – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
and Donald Nelson, Finance Director 
Town Manager Guillermo Olmedillo presented the item to the Town Commission and 
thanked the Finance Department. 

Vice Mayor Cohen arrived at 5:11 p.m. 

E. Proposed Operating Millage Rate – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, ESTABLISHING A PROPOSED OPERATING 
MILLAGE RATE AND THE CURRENT YEAR ROLLED-BACK RATE; 
ESTABLISHING THE DATE, TIME AND PLACE FOR THE FIRST AND 
SECOND PUBLIC BUDGET HEARINGS AS REQUIRED BY LAW; 
DIRECTING THE TOWN CLERK TO FILE SAID RESOLUTION WITH 
THE PROPERTY APPRAISER OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY PURSUANT TO 
THE REQUIREMENTS OF FLORIDA STATUTES AND THE RULES AND 
REGULATIONS OF THE DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE FOR THE STATE 
OF FLORIDA; PROVIDING FOR AUTHORIZATION; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Page 1



Minutes 
 Special Town Commission Meeting 

Proposed Budget 
July 11, 2017 

 
  

2 

  
 

Finance Director Donald Nelson spoke about the proposed millage rate.  He 
explained that the resolution sets the millage rate and the date and time for the first 
and second budget hearings. 
 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the resolution.   
 
Mayor opened the meeting to any members of the public wishing to speak.  No one 
wishing to speak, the Mayor closed the public hearing portion of the meeting. 
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to adopt the proposed millage rate.  The 
motion received a second from Commissioner Paul and all voted in favor.   
 

2. Adjournment  
 

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  Motion received a 
second from Commissioner Paul and all voted in favor.   
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:16 p.m. 

 
 
 

  Respectfully submitted, 
 

Accepted this _____day of ____________________, 2017 

 
 
 
 
       ________________________ 
       Daniel Dietch, Mayor 
Attest: 
 

 
 _______________________ 
Sandra Novoa, MMC 
Town Clerk 

 

Page 2



 
Town of Surfside 

Special Town Commission Meeting 
Quasi-Judicial Hearing 

MINUTES 
July 11, 2017 

 5:30 p.m.  
Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 

Surfside, FL  33154 
      

        
 

1. Opening  

A.  Call to Order    
Mayor Dietch called the meeting to order at 5:32 P.M 
 

B. Roll Call of Members 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa called the roll with the following members present:  
Mayor Dietch, Vice Mayor Cohen, Commissioner Paul, Commissioner Karukin, and 
Commissioner Gielchinsky.   

 
C. Pledge of Allegiance 

Police Chief Allen led the Pledge of Allegiance 
       

2.  Quasi-Judicial Hearings  
 
A. 228 89th Street – Casa de Jesus, Inc – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA; APPROVING A SPECIAL EXCEPTION WITH 
CONDITIONS TO PERMIT AN AFTER-SCHOOL PROGRAM AT CASA DE 
JESUS, INC. LOCATED AT 228 89TH STREET IN THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the resolution.   

Mayor Dietch explained the quasi-judicial process and the duties of the Commission. 

Town Clerk Sandra Novoa confirmed that compliance with advertising notice 
requirements have been met.   
 
Town Attorney Arango asked the Town Commission if anyone had any ex-parte 
communications with the Applicant or any objector. 
 
Commissioner Gielchinsky was present in his Liaison capacity to the Planning and 
Zoning Board and witness to the presentations from the applicant.  He also conversed 
with the applicant’s attorney Mr. Proctor and spoke twice with a representative about Page 3



   Minutes 
 Special Commission Meeting 

Quasi-Judicial Hearing 
July 11, 2017 

 
  

2 

  
 

their plans.  Mayor Dietch stated that he received an email in support of the 
application which he did not respond to. 
 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa swore in everyone wishing to speak in favor or against the 
item. 
 
Town Planner Sarah Sinatra presented the item.  Staff recommended approval of the 
special exception application subject to the conditions in the resolution. 

Public speaker Grace Murtada spoke on the item and gave her point of view. 
 
There was some discussion and questions posted by the Town Commission to 
members of Town staff.  Vice Mayor Cohen made a motion to approve, 
Commissioner Gielchinsky made the following friendly amendments: 

 
- Applicant shall notify the Commission via the Town Manager Report if 

applicant increases capacity from 20 to 30 students.  The matter could be 
brought to a Quasi-Judicial Hearing at the request of three members of the 
Town Commission. 

- Vehicle stickers shall be provided to staff for the three available staff parking 
spaces and provide a copy to the Police Chief or designee. 

- In the event that the Town Manager requests that the applicant have an off- 
duty Police Officer assist with traffic flow during pick-up and drop-off times, 
the applicant will agree to retain an off-duty Police Officer at his cost.  
 

Vice Mayor Cohen accepted the friendly amendment made by Commissioner 
Gielchinsky.  The motion carried 5-0. 

 
Mayor Dietch reminded the residents and visitors that to report illegal parking they 
should call the non-emergency Police Department number and a parking 
enforcement officer will be dispatched.  He also encouraged everyone that parks to 
please obey the law.  

 
 

B. 9509-9511 Harding Avenue – Appeal of the Town Manager’s Administrative 
Decision – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, APPROVING/DENYING AN APPEAL OF THE 
ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION DENYING  A REDUCTION OF THREE 
PARKING SPACES FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 9509-9511 HARDING 
AVENUE IN THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Deputy Clerk Elora Riera read the title of the resolution.   

Mayor Dietch explained the quasi-judicial process and the duties of the Commission. 

Page 4



   Minutes 
 Special Commission Meeting 

Quasi-Judicial Hearing 
July 11, 2017 

 
  

3 

  
 

Deputy Clerk Elora Riera confirmed that compliance with advertising notice 
requirements have been met.   
 
Town Attorney Arango asked the Town Commission if anyone had any ex-parte 
communications with the Applicant or any objector. 

  
Commissioner Gielchinsky stated that he received three phone calls from Mr. Kahn 
and provided a brief context of the conversations.  

 
Deputy Clerk Elora Riera swore in everyone wishing to speak in favor or against the 
item. 

   
Town Manager Guillermo Olmedillo presented the item and gave a brief background. 

 
Mr. David Kahn and Donald Kahn presented their case to the Town Commission and 
provided copies to everyone at the dais.  

 
After a brief discussion Commissioner Karukin made a motion to deny the appeal.  
The motion received a second from Commissioner Paul.  The motion carried 4-0 with 
Commissioner Gielchinsky absent from the dais.  

 
      3. Adjournment   

Vice Mayor Cohen made a motion to adjourn the meeting.  The motion received a second 
from Commissioner Paul.  The motion carried 3-0 with Commissioner Karukin and 
Commissioner Gielchinsky absent. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Accepted this _____day of ____________________, 2017 

 
 
 
       ________________________ 
       Daniel Dietch, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
 _______________________ 
Sandra Novoa, MMC 
Town Clerk 

Page 5



 
Town of Surfside 

Town Commission Meeting 
MINUTES 

July 11, 2017 
 7 p.m.  

Town Hall Commission Chambers - 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

      
        

 

1. Opening        

A. Call to Order 
Mayor Dietch called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m. 
          

B. Roll Call of Members 
Town Clerk Sandra Novoa called the roll with the following members present:  
Mayor Daniel Dietch, Vice Mayor Barry Cohen, Commissioner Tina Paul, 
Commissioner Michael Karukin and Commissioner Daniel Gielchinsky. 
    

C. Pledge of Allegiance  
Police Chief Allen led the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 

D. Mayor and Commission Remarks – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
Commissioner Paul spoke about the 4th of July celebration and thanked the Parks and 
Recreation Department for a job well done.  Commissioner Gielchinsky also spoke 
and commended the Parks and Recreation Department for the 4th of July event.  Vice 
Mayor Cohen wished everyone a happy summer and spoke about the First Friday’s 
event and invited people to contact him and meet with him. 
Mayor Dietch asked for a moment of silence in memory of Jean Petti-Frere.  He was 
a beloved part of the Parks and Recreation Department since 1992.  
Commissioner Gielchinsky congratulated Mayor Dietch on his recent birthday and 
wished him the best. 
Vice Mayor Cohen thanked Ms. Zawid for her services on the Tourist Board and he 
announced that Mr. Charles Ness will be replacing her.  Vice Mayor Cohen made a 
motion to appoint Charles Ness to the Tourist Board.  Commissioner Karukin 
seconded the motion.  The motion carried 4-1 with Mayor Dietch voting in opposition 
due to not receiving a copy of Mr. Ness’s application and not knowing the 
qualification per the Tourist Board guidelines and requirements. 
Mayor Dietch welcomed Lillian Arango and the entire team from Weiss Serota 
Helfman Cole & Bierman as the new Town Attorneys. 

E. Agenda and Order of Business Additions, deletions and linkages 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to move item 9A after item 1I.  The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Paul and all voted in favor. 
 
 Page 6



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 11, 2017 
 

  

2 

  
 

F. Community Notes – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
The Mayor announced upcoming community events which can be found in the 
Gazette and on the Town’s website.    
 

G. Scholarship Awards Presentation – Mayor Daniel Dietch 
Mayor Dietch presented Ms. Nicole Goetz with the scholarship award.  Ms. Goetz 
was unable to attend, she has gone on to attend school at the University of Florida.  
Her parents received the award in her name. 
Mayor Dietch presented Ms. Simone D’Antuono with the scholarship award.  Ms. 
D’Antuono was unable to attend, she has gone on to attend school at the University of 
Florida.  Her parents received the award in her name. 
 

H. Safe Harbour–Creating a Walkable Surfside – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Alexis Alvey an FIU graduate presented her master project.   
Members of the Town Commission commended her on her presentation.  Ms. Alvey 
answered a few questions from the Commission. 
 

I. Senator Daphne Campbell – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Senator Daphne Campbell spoke about her last session in Tallahassee and provided the 
Commission and the members of the public with her 2017 Legislative Update. 

 
 

2. Quasi-Judicial Hearings (None) 
 

3. Consent Agenda 
Commissioner Karukin pulled item 3E and Mayor Dietch pulled pages 38 
and 44 from item 3A.   
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve the consent agenda 
minus the pulled items.  The motion received a second from 
Commissioner Gielchinsky and all voted in favor. 
 

A. Minutes –  Sandra Novoa, MMC, Town Clerk   
 June 13, 2017 Regular Town Commission Meeting Minutes 

   Scrivener’s error in the word Scrivener’s.  
    
  June 15, 2017 Budget Workshop Meeting Minutes 

Mayor stated that during the Budget Workshop it was promised that the 
five-year financial forecast would be provided at the next budget 
meeting and that they did not receive anything at the 5:00 p.m. Budget 
meeting held earlier.   
Finance Director Donald Nelson promised delivery of the report by 
Tuesday, August 8, 2017. 

    
  June 15, 2017 Special Town Commission Meeting Minutes  
   June 22, 2017 Special Town Commission Meeting Minutes 
   June 27, 2017 Special Town Commission Meeting Minutes   
 
 

Page 7



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 11, 2017 
 

  

3 

  
 

            *B. Town Manager’s Report – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager  
      

1. See Click Fix 
2. Interlocal Shuttle Update 
3. Development Application Status 
4. Code Compliance 
5. Finance 
6. Information Technology 
7. Police Department 
 

  
            *C. Town Attorney’s Report – Linda Miller, Town Attorney  
 

         D.  Committee Reports – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
 

-  April 3, 2017 Tourist Board Meeting Minutes 
-  April 25, 2017 Parks and Recreation Committee Meeting Minutes 
-  May 1, 2017 Tourist Board Meeting Minutes 
-  May 25. 2017 Planning and Zoning Board Meeting Minutes 
-  

E.  Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman Engagement Letter Ratification – 
Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager  

 
 A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, APPROVING 

THE RETAINER AGREEMENT FOR LEGAL SERVICES WITH WEISS 
SEROTA HELFMAN COLE & BIERMAN, P.L. ATTACHED HERETO AS 
ATTACHMENT “A”; PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION AND 
AUTHORIZATION OF RETAINER AGREEMENT; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

  
Commissioner Karukin spoke on the item and disagreed with a part of Section 3 of 
the agreement.  He believes that Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman (WSHCB) 
should not charge the Town for courier charges between them and the Town or for 
any large photocopy jobs.  Lillian Arango, representing WSHCB agreed to amend 
the agreement and strikeout those items.   
  
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve the resolution with the two 
amendments.  The motion received a second from Commissioner Paul.  The motion 
carried 4-0 with Vice Mayor Cohen absent from the dais. 

 
 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve the pulled items from the consent agenda.  
The motion received a second from Commissioner Gielchinsky and all voted in favor with Vice 
Mayor Cohen absent from the Dais. 

 
 
 
 

Page 8



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 11, 2017 
 

  

4 

  
 

4. Ordinances  
 
A. Second Reading Ordinances 

None. 
B. First Reading Ordinances 

  None. 
 

 5.  Resolutions and Proclamations 
 

A. Town Website – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA APPROVING CALVIN, GIORDANO & 
ASSOCIATES, INC. WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 101 FOR SURFSIDE 
WEBSITE REDESIGN; AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE FROM THE 
2016/2017 FISCAL YEAR BUDGET IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF $49,500 
FROM THE BUILDING SERVICES DEPARTMENT OTHER 
CONTRACTUAL SERVICES ACCOUNT NO. 150-2500-524-3410 IN THE 
AMOUNT OF $24,750 AND THE GENERAL FUND EXECUTIVE 
DEPARTMENT OTHER CONTRACTUAL SERVICES ACCOUNT NO. 001-
2000-512-3410 $24,750 IN THE AMOUNT OF $24,750; PROVIDING FOR 
APPROVAL AND AUTHORIZATION; PROVIDING FOR 
IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Town Clerk Sandra Novoa read the title of the resolution. 

Chris Giordano and Tim Rodriguez from Calvin Giordano & Associates 
answered all of the Commissioner’s questions and concerns. 

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to approve.  The motion received a 
second from Commissioner Paul.  The motion carried 4-0 with Vice Mayor 
Cohen absent from the Dais. 

 
B. Four Year Staggered Terms for the Town Commission and Retain Two   

Year Term for Mayor – Commissioner Michael Karukin 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA CALLING FOR A MARCH 20, 2018 TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE SPECIAL ELECTION, FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
SUBMITTING TO THE ELECTORATE OF THE TOWN OF 
SURFSIDE, FLORIDA A BALLOT QUESTION ON AMENDMENTS 
TO THE TOWN CHARTER  “ESTABLISHING FOUR YEAR 
STAGGERED TERMS FOR COMMISSIONERS AND RETAINING 
MAYOR’S TWO YEAR TERM” COMMENCING WITH TOWN’S 
GENERAL ELECTION IN 2020; PROVIDING FOR THE TOWN 
CLERK TO UTILIZE THE SERVICES OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 

Page 9



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 11, 2017 
 

  

5 

  
 

SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS; PROVIDING FOR REPEALER; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

Town Attorney Lillian Arango explained the motion that was needed.  
Commissioner Gielchinsky made a motion to defer the approval of the 
resolution but address conceptually what is in the language. The motion 
received a second from Commissioner Karukin.  The motion carried 3-0 with 
Mayor Dietch and Vice Mayor Cohen absent from the dais.   

Town Attorney Lillian Arango stated that the current resolution as presented 
to the Town Commission was missing the actual text amendment language for 
the two sections of the charter that need to be amended and that they would 
like to present a revised proposed ballot language that they feel will be clearer 
to the voters.  

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to direct the Town Clerk to obtain 
authorization for a special election from the Miami Dade County Supervisor 
of Elections to add a ballot question to the March 20, 2018 election.  The 
motion received a second from Commissioner Gielchinsky.  The motion 
carried 3-0 with Mayor Dietch and Vice Mayor Cohen absent from the dais.   

   
      6.  Good and Welfare    

Mayor Dietch opened the public speaking. 
Public Speakers: 
 

- Terry Cohen spoke about code compliance issues and advised the Town 
Commission that Help me Howard will be featuring these issues. 

- Nathalie Vaturi spoke and gave her view regarding sidewalks 
- Deborah Cimadevilla spoke about undergrounding utilities and the effect of the 

electromagnetic field levels 
 

7. Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports 
Town Manager and Town Attorney Reports have been moved to the Consent Agenda –  
 Item 3.   
  

8. Unfinished Business and New Business 
 

9. Mayor, Commission and Staff Communications 
 

A. Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) for the Fiscal Year 
Ended September 30, 2016 – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Town Manager Guillermo Olmedillo introduced Julian Sardinas, a 
representative of Marcum, LLP who presented the report to the Town 
Commission. 
Finance Director Donald Nelson thanked his staff for their hard work. 
 
 

Page 10



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 11, 2017 
 

  

6 

  
 

B. Public Information Program – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Duncan Tavares, Assistant Town Manager presented the item to the Town 
Commission. 
After some discussion, Commissioner Paul made a motion to approve and to 
direct the Town Manager to move the Public Information Program into action.  
The motion received a second from Commissioner Gielchinsky and all voted 
in favor with Vice Mayor Cohen absent. 
 
Public speaker George Kousoulas provided his view on this item. 
 

C. Parking Structure – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Town Manager Guillermo Olmedillo presented the item to the Town 
Commission.  He provided a brief background and stated that he has received 
two concepts from two different groups that are interested (one on the Town 
Hall site and the other one on the Abbott lot).  For the record, the Town 
Manager’s recommendation is the Town Hall site. 
 
The following public speakers provided their views on this item: 
 

- George Kousoulas 
- Clara Diaz-Leal 
- Deborah Cimadevilla 

 
Commissioner Karukin requested the Town Manager to convey to the two 
groups the need of space for recreational and community activities as being 
more important than commercial spaces. 
 
Commissioner Paul stated she would like a referendum to see what the public 
wants.  The Mayor expressed his concerns on an open-ended referendum. 
 
Due to the non-solicited proposals, the Town Attorney explained that the P3 
Statue - once you receive a proposal and you entertain and review it, it 
provides for notice and publication.  Then there is a period of 21 to no more 
than 120 days where other proposers may submit proposals on the same 
project. 
 
Commissioner Gielchinsky made a motion to direct the Town Manager to 
invite both interested groups to submit proposals due by October 31, 2017.  
The motion received a second from Commissioner Karukin and all voted in 
favor with Vice Mayor Cohen absent. 
 

D. Artificial Grass – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Town Manager Guillermo Olmedillo presented the item and gave some 
background.   
Public speaker and affected resident Ruben Valdivia presented his case to the 
Town Commission.   
Commissioner Paul made a motion to extend the speaker’s time an extra 
minute allowing 4 minutes to speak.  The motion received a second from 

Page 11



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 11, 2017 
 

  

7 

  
 

Commissioner Gielchinsky and all voted in favor with Vice Mayor Cohen 
absent. 
 
After some debate, Commissioner Karukin made a motion to defer the item to 
the Planning and Zoning Board for discussion and recommendation and for 
the Town to hold off on any enforcement action.  The motion received a 
second from Commissioner Paul and the motion carried 4-0 with Vice Mayor 
Cohen absent. 
 
Town Manager Olmedillo excused himself from the meeting due to sickness.  
Assistant Town Manager Tavares sat at the dais on his behalf. 

E. Modifying Measurement of Height to Prepare for Sea Level Rise – Sarah 
Sinatra Gould, Town Planner 
Town Planner Sarah Sinatra presented the item and explained that at a 
previous meeting they discussed the direction from the Planning and Zoning 
Board to evaluate the opportunity to increase freeboard similar to what Miami 
Beach has.  She explained that to accommodate sea level rise there are many 
factors that can be included that will not require a referendum by the Town.  
The Planning and Zoning Board asked that the Commission look at options 
that do not require a referendum. 
 
Public speaker George Kousoulas gave his view on this item. 
 
After some discussion and questions by the Town Commission, 
Commissioner Karukin made a motion to direct the Town Planner through the 
Town Manager to work on some renderings to show the dimensions and 
present it to the Planning and Zoning Board and the Town Commission.  The 
motion received a second from Commissioner Gielchinsky and all voted in 
favor with Vice Mayor Cohen absent, 
 

F. August Meeting [Verbal] – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 
Assistant Town Manager Duncan Tavares presented the item to the Town 
Commission. 
Commissioner Gielchinsky thought that this was appropriate in order to take a 
pause and come back in September. 
Commissioner Karukin asked if there were any pressing items that needed to 
be taken care of in August.  Response was negative. 
 
After some comments of why he is not fully in agreement with taking a break 
in August, passing the gavel, Mayor Dietch made a motion to cancel the 
August 8, 2017 Town Commission meeting but have staff work on the 
following initiatives during the month of August: 
 

- Compact Mayor’s – Climate Change Program 
- Trap/Neuter/Release Plan  
- The Best Mango Contest 

 

Page 12



   Minutes 
 Regular Commission Meeting 

July 11, 2017 
 

  

8 

  
 

He added to the motion for staff to schedule a special commission meeting if 
any items require pressing action from the Town Commission and also a 
report back from staff of their accomplishments during the month of August.  
The motion received a second from Commissioner Karukin.  The motion 
carried 4-0 with Vice Mayor Cohen absent.  

G. Status of Comp Plan Amendments [Verbal] – Guillermo Olmedillo, Town 
Manager 
Town Planner Sarah Sinatra provided a verbal update and stated that this item 
has to be in front of the Board as a first reading ordinance before January 
2018. 

 
      10. Adjournment   
 

Commissioner Karukin made a motion to adjourn.  The motion received a second from 
Commissioner Paul and all voted in favor with Vice Mayor Cohen absent. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 10:41p.m.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 

 
 

Accepted this _____day of ____________________, 2017 

 
 
 
 
       ________________________ 
       Daniel Dietch, Mayor 
Attest: 
 

 
 _______________________ 
Sandra Novoa, MMC 
Town Clerk 

 
 

Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Town Attorney Report for September 2017 

Page 1 of 3 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE 
Office of the Town Attorney 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING 
9293 HARDING AVENUE 

SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 33154-3009 
Telephone (305) 993-1065 

TO:  Town Commission 

FROM: Lillian Arango, Town Attorney 

CC:  Guillermo Olmedillo, Town Manager 

DATE: August 31, 2017 

SUBJECT: Office of the Town Attorney Report for September 12, 2017 

This Office attended/prepared and/or rendered advice for the following Public Meetings: 

July 11, 2017 – Town Commission Quasi-judicial Meeting 

July 11, 2017 – Town Commission Meeting 

August 31, 2017 – Sustainability Subcommittee Meeting 

August 31, 2017 – Design Review Board and Planning and Zoning Board Meeting 

July 25, 2017 –    Tourist Board Meeting 

September 12, 2017 – Town Commission Quasi-judicial Meeting 

September 12, 2017 –    Town Commission Meeting 

Preparation and Review of agenda materials:  

 Town Commission Meeting

 Design Review Board and Planning and Zoning Board Meeting

 Members of the firm drafted the resolutions and ordinances for these meetings in addition

to drafting or assisting with the preparation of a number of the communications and

3C

Page 33



 Town Attorney Report for September 2017 
 

 
Page 2 of 3 

 

reviewing, revising and, as appropriate, negotiating the legal requirements of the relative 

agreements and supporting documents.  

Commission support:   

Members of the firm have worked with members of the Town Commission to address concerns 

and research specific issues and are always available, either in the office or by phone or email.   

We appreciate your support as we have worked to transition the office, fine-tune schedules, and 

evaluate and adjust prior practices.  Transitions are always challenging, but often a time to make 

improvements or adjustments which will improve quality or service. 

Staff support: 

Members of the firm have met with and provided extensive support to staff with application 

review, contract and agreement review, code enforcement, building permit and enforcement issues, 

research, document review, legal review of various issues, and Town Code interpretation and 

application. 

Key issues:   

The workload has been diverse and has included specific issue support to every department.  Key 

issues have included: 

 Revamping and completion of the election charter revision  

 Review, evaluation and revision of the Commission and Committee procedures  

 Preparation for budget adoption 

 Finalization of Tyler Technologies contract and materials 

 Various quasi-judicial applications 

 Haulover Skate Park 

 Tri-City Circulator 

Litigation: 

New information is provided for the following cases or claims: 

Florida Municipal Insurance Trust (“FMIT”) investigates claims and provides legal 

representation for the Town on the following claims/lawsuits: 

Page 34



 Town Attorney Report for September 2017 
 

 
Page 3 of 3 

 

1. Pieter Bakker v. Town of Surfside, a municipal corporation of the State of Florida and Young 

Israel of Bal Harbour, Inc. On May 30, 2012, Pieter Bakker filed a complaint in State Court 

against the Town which alleges counts against the Town including contract zoning, Charter 

violations, and a request for a writ of certiorari to quash Resolution 12-Z-2078 approving a 

Site Plan Application to permit Young Israel to build a synagogue on 9580 Abbott Avenue. 

On September 30, 2013, the Court ordered this matter to be transferred to the Appellate 

Division. Petitioner, Mr. Bakker filed a Third Amended Petition for Writ of Certiorari. The 

Town and Young Israel have filed a response to the Third Amended Petition for Writ of 

Certiorari.  Hearing on the merits with oral argument is scheduled for September 6, 2017. 

2. Aceto and Muhammad v. Town of Surfside – Case No. 16-490-AP.  Christopher Aceto and 

Adilah S. Muhammad, as property owners were cited and the Special Master found they had 

violated the Town’s Code of Ordinances by failing to register and pay fees and resort taxes 

on the short-term rental of their residential condominium.  They appealed the order of the 

Special Magistrate.  All briefs have been completed.  On August 29, 2017, the Town received 

notice the item has been set for review by the Court for November 16, 2017, without oral 

argument. 

Special Matters: Continued monitoring of new case law and legislation from Federal, State and 

County.   Matters which we will continue to work on, some of which you may anticipate in the 

upcoming months include issues related to medical marijuana, sign code revisions, short term 

rental provisions, and lobbying registration and restrictions. 

 

Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



3E

Page 53



 

1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2017-_____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSIONER OF 
THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA ENDORSING 
AND SUPPORTING THE EXPANSION OF THE NEW 
STARTS TRANSIT PROGRAM (NSTP) TO FACILITATE 
FUNDING FOR THE STRATEGIC MIAMI AREA RAPID 
TRANSIT (SMART) PLAN; PROVIDING FOR 
IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
WHEREAS, Miami-Dade County is suffering from severe traffic congestion involving an 

increasing amount of its roadways and for an increasing amount of time; and 

WHEREAS, this congestion has a detrimental effect on the quality of life for residents of 

Miami-Dade County, the prosperity of our local business community, and the economic climate 

of the area as a whole; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Surfside (“Town”) Commission advocates sound policy 

proposals that will benefit Town residents and businesses and the whole Miami-Dade County 

community; and  

WHEREAS, alleviating the severe congestion negatively impacting our community, will 

provide better quality of life for residents, provide better access to local businesses, and benefit 

the local cities; and 

WHEREAS, Miami-Dade County (“County”) and the Miami-Dade Metropolitan Planning 

Organization (“MPO”) have proposed the Strategic Miami Area Rapid Transit (SMART) Plan; 

and 

WHEREAS, the SMART Plan intends to advance six (6) of the rapid transit corridors, 

which primarily features six (6) rapid transit corridors that include both bus rapid transit and fixed-

guideway transit projects, that once completed, will connect all parts of the County to a holistic 

public transit system; and 

Page 54



 

2 
 

 

WHEREAS, completion of all six (6) corridors will require substantial funding and 

coordination from Federal, State, and Local governments; and 

WHEREAS, in 2005, the Florida Legislature established the New Starts Transit Program 

("NSTP") to assist local governments in developing and constructing fixed-guideway and bus 

rapid transit projects to accommodate and manage urban growth and development; and 

WHEREAS, qualifying projects of NSTP include rail transit and bus rapid transit systems; 

and 

WHEREAS, all of the major projects identified by the SMART Plan would potentially be 

eligible for funding under this program; and 

WHEREAS, by allowing additional State of Florida funds to be leveraged, it will add 

security to the funding model for the SMART Plan in the event that individual projects are not 

approved for federal funding and increase the cost feasibility of the plan as a whole; and 

WHEREAS, the SMART plan is essential to improving a rapidly growing metropolitan 

area like Miami-Dade County, but NSTP funds are vital to its success, thus the Town Commission 

advocates prioritizing the Expansion of the New Starts Transit Program to Facilitate Funding for 

the Strategic Miami Areas Rapid Transit Plan. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 

TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA to endorse and support the expansion of the NSTP to 

facilitate funding for the SMART Plan. 

Section 1. Recitals Adopted.  The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated 

into this Resolution by this reference. 

Page 55



 

3 
 

Section 2. Endorsement and Support for Expansion of NSTP to Facilitate 

Funding for the SMART Plan.   The Town Commission endorses and supports the expansion of 

the NSTP to facilitate funding for the SMART Plan. 

Section 3. Implementation.  The Town Mayor and/or Town Officials are authorized 

to take all action necessary to implement the purposes of this Resolution. 

Section 4.        Direction to the City Clerk.    The Town Commission hereby directs the 

Town Clerk to transmit a copy of this resolution to the Board and Members of the Miami-Dade  

League of Cities. 

Section 5. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon 

adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this ______day of September, 2017. 

 

Motion by _______________________________________________ 

Seconded by _____________________________________________ 

FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION 
 
Commissioner Daniel Gielchinsky  ____ 
Commissioner Michael Karukin  ____ 
Commissioner Tina Paul   ____ 
Vice Mayor Barry Cohen   ____ 
Mayor Daniel Dietch    ____  
              
 
             
      __________________________________                          
      DANIEL DIETCH, MAYOR 
 
 

Page 56



4 

ATTEST: 

SANDRA NOVOA, MMC, TOWN CLERK 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL SUFFICIENCY 
FOR THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY: 

________________________________
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole and Bierman, P.A. 
TOWN ATTORNEY 

Page 57



4B1

Page 58



Page 59



Page 60



Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



4B2

Page 68



Page 69



1

ORDINANCE NO. 17-________ 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF 
THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AMENDING 
CHAPTER 90 “ZONING”, SECTION 90-37 “SPECIAL 
EXCEPTIONS,” TO PROVIDE A SPECIAL 
EXCEPTION APPROVAL PROCESS AND RELATED 
CRITERIA FOR DUNE CROSSOVERS; AND BY 
AMENDING SECTION 90-60 “CONSTRUCTION 
ADJACENT TO BULKHEAD LINES” TO PERMIT 
DUNE CROSSOVERS ONLY IF APPROVED BY 
SPECIAL EXCEPTION; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN 
THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Town of Surfside ("Town") recognizes that changes to the adopted Code 
of Ordinances are periodically necessary in order to ensure that the Town’s regulations are current 
and consistent with the Town’s planning and regulatory needs; and 

WHEREAS, the Sustainability Committee has evaluated the impacts of dune crossovers 
on the environment and recommends prohibiting such crossovers except under limited, controlled 
circumstances; and   

WHEREAS, Section 161.053(3), Florida Statutes identifies conditions under which a 
coastal municipality may establish zoning codes in order to “preserve and protect the beaches and 
coastal barrier dunes adjacent to such beaches, which are under the jurisdiction of the department, 
from imprudent construction that will jeopardize the stability of the beach-dune system, accelerate 
erosion, provide inadequate protection to upland structures, endanger adjacent properties, or 
interfere with public beach access.”; and    

WHEREAS, Town staff has contacted the Florida Department of Environmental 
Protection who has authorized the Town to proceed with consideration and adoption of a zoning 
regulations to protect the dunes as provided herein; and  

WHEREAS, the recommendation of the Sustainability Committee was reviewed by the 
Planning and Zoning Board who requested that staff prepare the instant code amendment; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission held its first public hearing on September 12, 2017 
having complied with the notice requirements required by Florida Statutes; and 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board, as the local planning agency for the Town, 
held its hearing on the proposed amendment on September 28, 2017 with due public notice and 
input; and 

Page 70



2

WHEREAS, the Town Commission conducted a second duly noticed public hearing on 
these regulations as required by law on October 10, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission hereby finds and declares that adoption of this 
Ordinance is in the best interest of the Town. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF 
THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are ratified and confirmed as 
being true and correct and are made a specific part of this Ordinance. 

Section 2. Code Amendment. Section 90-37 “Special exceptions,” of the code of the 
Town of Surfside, Florida is hereby amended as follows: 

Sec. 90-37. - Special exceptions. 

(1) The following are special exceptions which may be granted by resolution of the town 

commission receiving at least three affirmative votes: 

(a) Nonconforming uses as follows: 

i. A nonconforming use now existing in any part of a building to be extended

vertically or laterally to other portions of the building.

ii. To determine the existence of a nonconforming use.

(b) Dune crossovers, pursuant to 90-60.1(6), provided the town commission finds that: 

i. alternative beach access is not otherwise available within a reasonable distance;

and 

ii. the proposed crossover will create only minimal disturbance to the dune system

and appropriate mitigation measures will be provided by the applicant.  

(2) Other special use exceptions as follows: 

 (a)i. To determine, in cases of uncertainty, the classification of any use not 

specifically named in these regulations; provided, however, such use shall be in 

keeping with uses specifically listed in the district. 

Page 71



3

(3) The town manager or designee shall review the application and shall compile a written 

staff report summarizing the facts regarding the application and the complete staff report 

shall be transmitted to the planning and zoning board. The town manager shall schedule 

the application for a meeting of the planning and zoning board. The planning and zoning 

board shall conduct one public hearing and shall make a recommendation to the town 

commission for final action. 

* *  *

Section 3. Code Amendment.  Section 90-60 “Construction adjacent to bulkhead lines,” 
of the code of the Town of Surfside, Florida is hereby amended as follows: 

Sec. 90-60. – Construction adjacent to bulkhead lines. 

90-60.1 Ocean bulkhead lines are established in section 14-86 and the following regulations 

shall control construction adjacent thereto:  

* *  *

(6) No dune crossovers from east to west, west to east, or in any way through a dune, shall 
be permitted without Special Exception approval pursuant to Section 90-37.  
Crossovers existing as of January 1, 2017, as documented by the Town, shall be 
considered legal.   

* *  *

Section 4.  Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is 
held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding 
shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining portions of this ordinance. 

Section 5.  Inclusion in the Code.  It is the intention of the Town Commission, and it is 
hereby ordained that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and made a part of the Town of 
Surfside Code of Ordinances, that the sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered 
to accomplish such intentions; and the word “Ordinance” may be changed to “Section” or other 
appropriate word. 

Section 6. Conflicts. Any and all Ordinances and Resolutions or parts of Ordinances or 
Resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 

Section 7.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on first reading this 12th day of September, 2017. 

Page 72



4

PASSED AND ADOPTED on second reading this __ day of ____________, 2017. 

On Final Reading Moved by: ________________________________ 

On Final Reading Second by: ________________________________ 

 FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION: 

Commissioner Daniel Gielchinsky _____ 
Commissioner Michael Karukin  _____ 
Commissioner Tina Paul _____ 
Vice Mayor Barry Cohen  _____ 
Mayor Daniel Dietch _____ 

______________________________ 
Daniel Dietch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 
Sandra Novoa, MMC, Town Clerk 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGALITY FOR THE USE 
AND BENEFIT OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY: 

__________________________________ 
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L., 
Town Attorney 

Page 73



4B3

Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



Page 81



Page 82



Page 83



Page 84



Page 85



Page 86



Page 87



Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



4B4

Page 92



Page 93



ORDINANCE NO. 2017- 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 
78 “UTILITIES” OF THE TOWN CODE; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR 
INCORPORATON OF RECITALS; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, Section 11 of the Town of Surfside (the “Town”) Charter authorizes the 
Town Commission to levy, assess, and collect fees on all property within the Town; and 

WHEREAS, on October 12, 2010, the Town Commission adopted Ordinance No. 10-
1560 amending Chapter 78 “Utilities” of the Town’s Code of Ordinances (“Code”); and 

WHEREAS, on May 10, 2016, the Town Commission adopted Resolution No. 16-2375 
approving Black & Veatch to review and analyze the Town’s current water, sewer, and 
stormwater rates and to develop a series of revenues of adjustments to meet the requirement for 
each utility for the next five fiscal years; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission wishes to amend Chapter 78 of the Town’s Code 
based upon the rate study and establish amended service charges for the Town’s utilities for the 
fiscal year beginning October 1, 2017; and 

WHEREAS, the Town Commission finds that amending Chapter 78 of the Town’s Code 
and revising the Town’s utility charges is in the best interest of the Town, will assist the Town in 
recovering the cost of providing utility services, will promote equity in utility rates, will assist 
the Town in establishing reserve policies to avoid future rate hikes, will encourage water 
conservation throughout the Town, will improve the Town’s water and sewer capital 
infrastructure (which are mandated by DERM), and will enable the Town to secure funding for 
capital improvement debt service costs. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE 
HEREBY ORDAINS:1  

Section 1. Recitals Adopted. That the above-stated recitals are hereby adopted and 
confirmed.  

Section 2. Amending Chapter 78 of the Town Code. That Chapter 78 of the Town Code is 
hereby amended to read as set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

1 Coding: Strikethrough words are deletions to the existing words. Underlined words are additions to the existing words. Changes between first 
and second reading are indicted with highlighted double strikethrough and double underline.

Page 94



Section 3. Codification. That it is the intent of the Town Council that the provisions of this 
ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Town’s Code of Ordinances, and that the 
sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or relettered and the word “ordinance” may be 
changed to “section,” “article,” “regulation,” or such other appropriate word or phrase in order to 
accomplish such intentions. 

Section 4. Severability. That the provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable 
and if any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance shall for any reason be held to be 
invalid or unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of the remaining sections, 
sentences, clauses, and phrases of this Ordinance but they shall remain in effect, it being the 
legislative intent that this Ordinance shall stand notwithstanding the invalidity of any part. 

Section 5. Conflicts. All ordinances or parts of ordinances, resolutions or parts of 
resolutions, in conflict herewith, are repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 6. Effective Date. That this Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 
adoption on second reading.  

PASSED on first reading on the 12th day of September, 2017. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on second reading on the 10th day of October, 2017.  

First Reading:  
Motion by:       
Second by:      
 

Second Reading:  
Motion by:       
Second by:      

 
FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION 
Commissioner Daniel Gielchinsky   
Commissioner Michael Karukin   
Commissioner Tina Paul    
Vice Mayor Barry Cohen    
Mayor Daniel Dietch     
 

[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS] 
  

Page 95



 
 
 
       

       Daniel Dietch, Mayor 
 
 
Attest:   
 
 
       
Sandra Novoa, MMC 
Town Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form and Legal Sufficiency:  
 
 
       
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L. 
Town Attorney 
  

Page 96



EXHIBIT A 
  

Page 97



CHAPTER 78 - UTILITIES 

* * * 

ARTICLE II. - WATER SERVICE 

* * * 

Sec. 78-27. - Amendment of regulations.  

The changes and variations in the sections comprising Chapter 110, Miami Beach City 
Code, as further amended by section 78-26, as made by the town commission are enumerated as 
follows:  

Section 110-166 is amended to read as follows:  

1. The consumption rate of nonmunicipal single-family residential, duplex, triplex, and 
quadraplex consumers for water supply service in the territory shall be established by 
resolution of the Town Commission. based on an inclining block rate structure as 
follows:  

6,000 gallons  $2.97 per 1,000 gallons  

6,001—12.000 gallons  $3.56 per 1,000 gallons  

12,001 and above  $5.94 per 1,000 gallons  

 

The consumption rate for nonmunicipal consumers, excluding single-family residential, 
duplex, triplex, and quadraplex consumers for water supply service in the territory shall 
be a uniform block rate of $3.67 per 1000 gallons established by resolution of the Town 
Commission..  

110-166. Section 110-166 is amended to read as follows:  

2. Any municipality within town limits, which purchases its water supply in whole or in 
part from the town shall be charged at the rate of $2.97 per 1,000 gallons established by 
resolution of the Town Commission. Any municipality outside town limits shall be 
charged at the rate of $3.67 per 1000 gallons established by resolution of the Town 
Commission.  

110-166. Subsection (a) of section 110-166 is amended to read as follows:  

Every water supply service shall have a monthly service charge on each service installed. 
The monthly service charge on each service shall vary with and be based upon the size of 
the service pipe required and installed. This service charge shall be in accordance with the 
following schedule and shall entitle the consumer, without excess charge, to have supplied 
through the meter the number of 4 gallons of water set forth in the table.  

Page 98



All bills for water service shall be paid within thirty days from date of bill. If such bills are 
not paid by the first day of the second month following that in which the service was 
rendered, such service shall be discontinued.  

The monthly service charge shall be established by resolution of the Town Commission. as 
follows:  

Size of Service (in inches)  Monthly Base (Fixed) Service Charge  

5/8 $13.90  

1   20.22  

1½   30.76  

2   43.40  

3   72.90  

4  115.03  

6  220.37  

8  346.78  

 

There shall not be a rental charge on meters.  

110-166. Subsection (d) of section 110-166 is amended to read as follows:  

Upon the application of the owner or consumer for water service, on premises to which 
there has not been any previous service for water, or for an additional, enlarged or reduced 
service, the following tapping charges, as established by resolution of the Town 
Commission, shall be made to cover the cost of the tap and the installation of the service to 
the property line of the lot to be supplied with water service.:  

Up to 1-inch tap and service $350.00* 

1½-inch tap and service $500.00* 

2-inch tap and service 650.00* 

Over 2-inch tap and service Actual cost, plus 15 percent 

*Additional charge where a street, sidewalk, 
curb of gutter is cut 

Actual cost of replacement, plus 15 percent 

There shall not be a rental charge on meters.  

All water meters and meter boxes servicing private property shall be located upon said 
property, and in no case shall be in the public right-of-way.  

110-166. Subsection (e) of section 110-166 is amended to read as follows:  

Page 99



Every owner or consumer making an application for water service shall be required to 
make a deposit for each meter with the public works department called a guarantee of 
payment deposit. The amount of such deposit shall be according to the size of the service for 
each meter in the following schedule as established by resolution of the Town Commission.:  

Minimum Guarantee Deposits  

Service  Owner, per Meter  

5/8 ″  $160.00  

1″   200.00  

1½″   300.00  

2″   400.00  

3″   600.00  

4″   800.00  

6″  1,200.00  

8″  1,600.00  

If no refund has been applied for within one year after water service has been 
discontinued to the party making the guarantee deposit for water service at the specific 
location mentioned in the receipt, such deposit shall be forfeited and be transferred to the 
water revenue account of the town.  

110-192. Subsection (a) of section 110-192 is amended to read as follows:  

All delinquent accounts, including metered water supply service, may cause the service 
of the water department to be discontinued and the water supply to be shut off from and to 
the premises of the owner or consumer from whom such account is in arrears, immediately 
upon such account becoming delinquent or as soon thereafter as practicable, without notice, 
and such service will not be resumed and the water turned on to such premises until the 
amount of the delinquent account and the sum of $25.00 for the first occurrence then $50.00 
for the second and subsequent occurrence(s) within a rolling 12-month calendar period such 
sums as may be established by resolution of the Town Commission for turning on the supply 
to each premises so shut off has have been paid. All accounts shall be settled in person at 
town hall or by mail.  

110-3. Section 110-3 is amended to read as follows:  

Any person found guilty of a violation of any of the foregoing rules and regulations in 
this chapter, or who shall fail to observe any of the foregoing regulations, or who shall take 
and use water of the town without paying therefor, or who shall connect his premises with 
any water main of the town without the permission of the water department, shall, upon 
conviction thereof, be punished as provided in section 1-8 of the Code of the Town of 
Surfside, Florida.  

* * * 

Page 100



ARTICLE III. - SEWERS AND SEWAGE DISPOSAL 

* * * 

Sec. 78-56. - Sewer service charges.  

(a) There is hereby imposed, upon all premises within the town connected to or using the 
facilities of the town's sanitary sewer system, a monthly sewer service charge based on 
effluent flow. Such sanitary sewer service charge shall be in an amount equal to $5.41 per 
1,000 gallons of billed sewer flow per account or dwelling unit delivered to the consumer 
established by resolution of the Town Commission. In addition to the flow-based charge 
there shall be a base (fixed) monthly charge in the amount of $3.44 per account or dwelling 
unit established by resolution of the Town Commission. The amount of such sanitary sewer 
system service charges shall be shown as a separate item on such water bills and shall be 
paid by the owner or occupant in possession of such premises at the same time and in the 
same manner as is provided in this chapter for the payment of water bills. Further, provided 
that the provisions of this section shall not be applicable to any water sold and delivered 
through separate meters measuring water delivered and consumed solely for swimming 
pools, lawn sprinkler systems or other purposes not requiring the use of the sanitary sewer 
system facilities of the town.  

(b) In addition to the penalty for violation of this section as set forth in this article, all 
delinquent accounts may cause the service of the water department to be discontinued and 
the water supply to be shut off from and to the premises in accordance with this article.  

Sec. 78-57. - Review of service rates.  

Rates set forth in this article shall be reviewed annually at the time the town's general 
operating budget is reviewed and adopted. The town commission shall, from time to time, amend 
this article, so that revenues expected to be generated by the sewer service and other charges 
shall be sufficient to pay the projected operating, and maintenance, and debt service 
requirements costs for providing such services as well as providing for desired unrestricted and 
restricted net asset reserves, The town commission shall also provide the funds necessary in 
accordance with this article. Sewer system customers of the town shall be notified of rates and 
other charges applicable to such sewer service.  

Secs. 78-58—78-80. - Reserved.  

* * * 

 

Page 101



/ September 12, 2017
5A

Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



page 1 of 9 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 17 - 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, CALLING FOR A 
MARCH 20, 2018 TOWN OF SURFSIDE SPECIAL 
ELECTION, FOR THE PURPOSE OF SUBMITTING TO 
THE ELECTORATE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, 
FLORIDA, A  PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE TOWN 
CHARTER CONCERNING SECTION 5 - “NUMBER; 
SELECTION; TERM”, SECTION 8 -“PRESIDING 
OFFICERS”, AND SECTION 105 - “GENERAL AND 
SPECIAL ELECTIONS OF COMMISSION MEMBERS”, AS 
PRESENTED  IN A BALLOT QUESTION ON 
AMENDMENTS TO THE TOWN CHARTER  
“ESTABLISHING FOUR-YEAR STAGGERED TERMS FOR 
COMMISSIONERS AND RETAINING MAYOR’S TWO- 
YEAR TERM” COMMENCING WITH TOWN’S GENERAL 
ELECTION IN 2020; PROVIDING FOR THE TOWN CLERK 
TO UTILIZE THE SERVICES OF MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS FOR THE SPECIAL 
ELECTION; PROVIDING FOR CHARTER AMENDMENT 
ELECTION PROCEDURES AND RELATED DETAILS; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

WHEREAS, Section 97.1 of the Town Charter of the Town of Surfside (“Town”) 
referencing Section 6.03 of Article 6 of the Home Rule Charter for Miami-Dade County provides 
the manner in which charter amendments shall be proposed; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with provisions of the Charter of the Town and the general 

laws of the State of Florida, a Special Election is hereby called and directed to be held in the 
Town of Surfside, Florida, from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. on Tuesday, March 20, 2018, for the 
purpose of submitting to the electorate the proposed amendment to the Town Charter which is 
set forth herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, that the appropriate and proper Miami-Dade County election officials shall 

conduct the said Special Election hereby called, with acceptance of the certification of the results 
of said Special Election to be performed by the Town Commission. The official returns shall be 
furnished to the Town Clerk as soon as the ballots from the precinct have been tabulated and in 
accordance with Section 26-12 of the Town Code and applicable laws; and 

 
WHEREAS, the voting precinct in the Town for said Special Election which has been 

established by the proper and appropriate Miami-Dade County Election Officials is located at 
Surfside Town Hall, 9293 Harding Avenue, Surfside, Florida 33154. All Town electors shall 
vote at this polling place for this Special Election; and 

 

Page 105



page 2 of 9 
 

WHEREAS, not less than thirty (30) days’ notice of the adoption of this Resolution and 
of its provisions calling this Special Election shall be given by publication in the Miami Herald, 
a newspaper of general circulation in Surfside, Miami-Dade County, Florida. Such publication 
shall be made once in the fifth week before the election and once in the third week before the 
election in accordance with the provisions of Section 100.342, Florida Statutes, and the Town 
Code.  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF 
THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. Recitals.   The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated into this 
Resolution by this reference. 
 
Section 2. Notice of Election.   The Notice of Election shall be substantially in the following 
form: 

 

“THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA 
 

NOTICE OF SPECIAL ELECTION  
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT A SPECIAL ELECTION HAS BEEN 
CALLED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, 
FLORIDA, AND WILL BE HELD IN SAID TOWN FROM 7:00 A.M. UNTIL 7:00 
P.M. ON TUESDAY, THE 20TH DAY OF MARCH, 2018, AT WHICH TIME 
THERE SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE DULY REGISTERED AND 
QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE THE FOLLOWING 
CHARTER AMENDMENT QUESTION: 

   

ESTABLISHING FOUR YEAR STAGGERED TERMS FOR COMMISSIONERS AND 
RETAINING MAYOR’S TWO YEAR TERM 
 

The Charter provides for Mayor and Commissioners to be elected to two year terms, with the 
Commissioner receiving the most votes becoming Vice Mayor.  It is proposed that the Charter be 
amended to retain a two year term for Mayor, while providing for transition to four year, 
staggered terms for Commissioners beginning in 2020, and for Vice Mayor to be selected by the 
Commission from among its members. 
 

Shall the Charter amendment be adopted?  
 

     YES   [    ] 
     NO     [    ]      

 

The polling place for the Special Election shall be the Surfside Town Hall located at 9293 
Harding Avenue, Surfside, Florida 33154.  All Town electors who are timely registered ( ie: on 
or before February 20, 2018) shall be eligible to vote. The enabling Resolution, including the 
ballot question and the full text of the proposed Charter Amendment are available at the Office 
of the Town Clerk, located at the Surfside Town Hall. 
 

_____________________________ 
Sandra Novoa, MMC, Town Clerk ”  

Page 106



page 3 of 9 
 

 
    
 
Section 3. Form of Ballot.  
 

A. That the official ballot to be used in the Special Election to be held on Tuesday, March 
20, 2018, as hereby called, shall be in substantially the following form, to-wit: 
 
 

“OFFICIAL BALLOT 
 

ESTABLISHING FOUR YEAR STAGGERED TERMS FOR COMMISSIONERS AND 
RETAINING MAYOR’S TWO YEAR TERM 
 
The Charter provides for Mayor and Commissioners to be elected to two year terms, with the 
Commissioner receiving the most votes becoming Vice Mayor.  It is proposed that the Charter be 
amended to retain a two year term for Mayor, while providing for transition to four year, 
staggered terms for Commissioners beginning in 2020, and for Vice Mayor to be selected by the 
Commission from among its members. 
 
Shall the Charter amendment be adopted?  
 

     YES   [    ] 
 
     NO     [    ]      ” 

 
B. The form of the ballot to be used in this Special Election and its preparation shall be in 

compliance with all statutory requirements relating to the use of mechanical or other 
approved voting machines or devices. 
 

Section 4. Charter Amendment Text; Effectiveness.   The text of the proposed Charter 
amendment (the “Charter Amendment”) is set forth in Exhibit “A”, which is attached hereto and 
incorporated herein. The Charter Amendment shall become effective if the majority of the 
qualified electors of the Town voting on the Charter Amendment vote for its adoption, and it 
shall be considered adopted and effective upon the certification of the Special Election results. 
Following the adoption of the Charter Amendment, the Town Clerk shall file the adopted Charter 
Amendment with the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Miami- Dade County, Florida.  
 
Section 5. Registration to Vote.    Registration of persons desiring to vote in the Special 
Election shall be in accordance with the general law of the State of Florida governing voter 
registration. Qualified persons may obtain registration forms to vote at the Office of the Town 
Clerk, Town Hall, 9293 Harding Avenue, Surfside, Florida 33154, during normal business hours, 
and at such other voter registration centers and during such times as may be provided by the 
Supervisor of Elections of Miami-Dade County. The Miami-Dade County Supervisor of 
Elections will register voters for this Special Election until 5:00 p.m. on February 20, 2018. All 
persons eligible to vote at this Special Election must be registered before the time and date set 
forth herein or have registered previously, as provided by law. Each person desiring to become a 

Page 107



page 4 of 9 
 

registered voter shall be responsible for properly filling out the registration form and returning it 
to the Miami-Dade County Elections Office. All questions concerning voter registration should 
be directed to the Miami-Dade County Elections Office, 2700 N.W. 8th Avenue, Doral, Florida 
33172; Telephone: (305) 499-VOTE (8683). 

 
Section 6. Absentee Voters.    That the absentee voters participating in said Special Election 
shall be entitled to cast their ballot in accordance with the provisions of the Laws of the State of 
Florida with respect to absentee voting. 

 
Section 7. Election Expenses.   That the Town of Surfside shall pay all expenses for conducting 
this Special Election and will pay such expenses to Miami-Dade County or directly to all persons 
or firms, upon receipt of invoice or statement approved by the Supervisor of Elections of Miami-
Dade County, Florida. 

 

Section 8. Available for Public Inspection/Town Clerk to Utilize the Services of Miami-
Dade County Supervisor of Elections.  Copies of this Resolution providing for this Charter 
Amendment subject to this referendum approval is on file in the Office of the Town Clerk 
located at 9293 Harding Avenue, Surfside, Florida and is available for public inspection during 
regular business hours. Furthermore, the Town Clerk is authorized to utilize the services of 
Miami-Dade County Supervisor of Elections for any assistance required in the administration of 
the election. 
 

Section 9. Severability.   If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of the ballot measure or 
proposed Charter Amendment text is held to be invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 
competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining 
portions of said ballot measure or Charter Amendment text. 

 

Section 10. Authorization of Town Officials.  The Town Manager, Town Attorney and Town 
Clerk are hereby authorized to take all steps necessary to complete the execution and 
implementation of the terms and purposes of this Resolution, and the codification of the Charter 
Amendment if adopted and effective as described in Section 4 above. 

 

Section 11. Effective Date.  Following the passage and adoption of this Resolution, this 
Resolution shall be effective immediately from and after November 22, 2017, so as to comply 
with the 120 day time constraint of Section 6.03 of the Miami-Dade County Charter. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this ____ day of _____________, 2017. 
 

Motion by Commissioner ______________, second by Commissioner ______________. 
 
FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION 
Commissioner  Daniel Gielchinsky  ____ 
Commissioner Michael Karukin  ____ 
Commissioner Tina Paul   ____ 
Vice Mayor Barry Cohen   ____ 
Mayor Daniel Dietch    ____ 

 
 

Page 108



page 5 of 9 
 

__________________________ 
Daniel Dietch, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Sandra Novoa, MMC, Town Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY FOR THE  
TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY: 

______________________________ 
Town Attorney 
 
  

Page 109



page 6 of 9 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

TEXT OF PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENT OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE 
 

The Town of Surfside Charter Section 5 - “Number; Selection; Term”, Section 8 - “Presiding 
Officers”, and Section 105 -  “General and Special Elections of Commission Members”, are 
hereby amended to read as indicated below, with additions to existing Charter text being shown 
in underline; and deletions from existing Charter text being shown in strikethrough.  

 Sec. 5. - Number; selection; term. 

The commission shall have five members elected from the town at large in the manner and for terms 
provided in section 8(B) or Article VI (as applicable), or until their successors have been elected and take 
office.  

 Sec. 8. - Presiding officers. 

        A.  Except as otherwise provided in paragraph (B), below, and subject  Subject  to Charter 
Section 105,  when  applicable, candidates receiving the highest number of votes shall be elected as follows: 
The Mayor shall be elected separately from his/her own group. The four Commissioners shall run at-large 
and the Commissioner receiving the highest number of votes in the General Election shall, for a term of two 
years immediately following thereafter, have the title of Vice-Mayor, subject to the limited exception 
provided for in Charter Section 105(8)C. The Commissioners receiving the second, third and fourth highest 
number of votes in the General Election shall, for a term of two years immediately following thereafter, 
serve as the remaining Commissioners.  

 
B. However, while retaining the two-year term for the office of Mayor, commencing with the 

General Election of March, 2020, a transition shall be made to provide for a four-year term of office for four 
Commissioners, in lieu of a two-year term of office for Commissioners. This transition shall be made in 
accordance with the following implementation schedule, which is designed to provide for a smooth 
transition to staggered, four-year terms of office for Commissioners, to wit:   

          (i) At the March, 2020 General Election, the two Commission candidates who are elected 
with the highest and second highest number of votes shall be elected for a four-year term of office, and the 
two Commission candidates who are elected with the third and fourth highest number of votes shall be 
elected for a two-year term of office. Further, in the event that at said election, candidates are elected as 
Commissioner by operation of law rather than by vote of the electorate, the determination as to which of 
said candidates so elected by operation of law received the higher number of votes, for the purpose of 
determining which of said candidates receives the four- year term of office and the two- year  term of office, 
will be made by the drawing of lots in the presence of and under the supervision and direction of the Town 
Clerk.  Following the commencement of terms resulting from the March, 2020 General Election, the Town 
Commission shall select the Vice Mayor from among the four Commissioners. The Vice Mayor designation 
shall be made each two years thereafter, in the same manner, following each General Election.  

          (ii) At the March, 2022 General Election, the two Commission places which received the 
two-year terms of office described in subparagraph (i) above, shall be presented for election for a four-year 
term of office. Accordingly, the two Commission candidates who are elected with the highest and second 
highest number of votes at the March, 2022 General Election shall be elected for a four-year term of office. 

         (iii) As a result of completion of the implementation schedule described above in this 
paragraph (B), commencing with the March, 2022 General Election and for the General Election held every 
two years thereafter, each General Election will present three elective offices for a vote of the electors of the 

Page 110



page 7 of 9 
 

Town, consisting of the Mayor and two Commissioners. The Mayoral office will remain as a two-year term 
of office. Candidates receiving the highest number of votes shall be elected to the office sought. 

(iv) The Town Commission may, by ordinance, provide further procedures for the implementation 
of this paragraph (B), if desired.  

 

 Sec. 105. - General and special elections of commission members. 

(1)  
On the third Tuesday in March in every even numbered calendar year, all members of the Town 
Commission shall be elected for terms of two (2) years, provided, however, that Commission 
members elected for four (4) year terms at the 1974 Election pursuant to the Charter provisions 
in existence prior to the adoption of this Amendment, shall remain in office until the expiration 
of the term to which they were elected under such prior provisions. At the Election to be held in 
the year 1976, and biennially thereafter, all members of the Town Commission shall be elected 
for terms of TWO (2) years; terms to begin at 8 o'clock P.M. on the day following the Election.  

(2)  
Should a vacancy on the commission be filled at a general municipal election, pursuant to 
Charter Section 16, the term of such vacancy shall be considered to have expired and the 
candidate elected shall be elected for a two-year term. The commission may implement the 
provisions of this section or other provisions of this Charter governing the filling of vacancies, 
by ordinance, not inconsistent with the provisions of this Charter.  

(3)  
If two or more vacancies occur at approximately the same time they shall be filled separately in 
the order in which they occur. If all the places on the commission shall become vacant at once, or 
should a majority of the places on the commission become vacant, the Town Manager shall 
within sixty days call a Special Election of members to serve for the remainder of the unexpired 
terms; the candidates receiving the highest number of votes shall be elected for the longest 
unexpired terms and the candidates receiving the next highest number of votes shall be elected 
for the shortest unexpired terms. Should the Town Manager fail or refuse to order an election as 
herein provided within the time required, such election may be ordered by any court of 
competent jurisdiction.  

(4)  
All elections held on the third Tuesday of March in even numbered calendar years, or any 
postponements thereof, for the election of commissioners shall be known as general municipal 
elections. All other elections shall be known as special municipal elections.  

(5)  
All members of the Commission receiving the highest number of votes shall be elected in 
accordance with Charter Section 8. A run-off election shall be held the first Tuesday of April 
following the general election for those candidates receiving the following tie votes:  
—  

Tie vote among all candidates for Mayor and/or among all candidates for Town 
Commissioner;  

—  
Tie vote among four or more candidates for Town Commissioner after one Town 
Commissioner seat is filled;  

 
 
—  

Page 111



page 8 of 9 
 

Tie vote among three or more candidates for Town Commissioner after two Town 
Commissioner seats are filled;  

—  
Tie vote between two or more candidates for Town Commissioner after three Town 
Commissioner seats are filled.  

A seat shall be considered "filled" as referenced hereinabove when a candidate receives the 
highest number of votes cast, in accordance with Charter Section 8.  

Should the highest votes in the run-off election result in a tie result, the outcome shall be 
determined by lot. The runoff election shall be held in the same manner and form as the general 
municipal election.  

(6)  
All elections shall be conducted by secret ballot, with or without the use of voting machines as 
the commission by ordinance may direct, and under rules to be fixed by ordinance not 
inconsistent herewith.  

(7)  
No general or special election of the Town of Surfside shall be held on a national or state legal 
holiday. Should the third Tuesday in March in any even numbered calendar year be declared such 
a legal holiday, then the regular election scheduled for that day shall be postponed to the first day 
thereafter that is not a legal holiday, and the induction of commissioners into office shall be 
deferred to the next business day following such postponed election, but such deferred induction 
shall not change the expiration dates of the terms of office of the candidates elected.  

(8)  
    A.  

If not more than one candidate has qualified for Mayor and/or the number of qualified 
candidates for Town Commissioner are equal to or less than the number of seats to be 
filled, then said candidates shall be elected by operation of law and no election for said 
Office(s) shall be conducted. Any remaining unfilled seats on the commission shall be 
filled in accordance with the supplemental qualifying process set forth in subsection B 
below, as applicable.  

B.  
If more than one candidate has qualified for Mayor and/or the number of qualified 
candidates for Town Commissioner are greater than the number of seats to be filled, then 
the election shall be held for purposes of electing said officials. If however, following the 
qualifying period a qualified candidate withdraws, dies, or is removed from the ballot, 
leaving fewer than two qualified candidates for Mayor and/or a number of qualified 
candidates for Town Commissioner which are equal to or less than the number of seats to 
be filled, then a vacancy in candidacy shall have occurred, and there shall be one 
supplemental qualifying period of five (5) business days beginning on the first business day 
immediately following the vacancy. The Town shall by ordinance establish the number of 
days (no less in number than as advised by the Miami-Dade County Elections Department) 
prior to the election date by which no further supplemental qualifying period shall occur.  
(a)  

If after the end of all applicable qualifying periods there are two or more qualified 
candidates for Mayor and/or the number of qualified candidates for Town 
Commissioner are greater than the number of seats to be filled, then the election shall 
be held for purposes of electing said officials.  

(b)  
If after the end of all applicable qualifying periods there is only one qualified 
candidate for Mayor and/or the number of qualified candidates for Town 
Commissioner are equal in number or less than the number of seats to be filled, then 

Page 112



page 9 of 9 

said candidates shall be deemed elected by operation of law and no election for said 
Office(s) shall be conducted.  

(c)  
Any unfilled Commission seats remaining after the end of all applicable qualifying 
periods for the General Election as a result of no candidates having qualified to fill 
such seats shall be deemed a vacancy on the commission, which shall be filled in 
accordance with the procedure set forth in Section 16 of the Town Charter. 

C.  
The terms of all newly-elected commissioners from the General/RunOff Election shall 
commence in accordance with Charter Section 19 except in the event the election has not 
been held due to all said commission members having been elected by operation of law as 
set forth hereinabove, in which case all such officials' terms shall commence on the first 
business day immediately following the subject scheduled election date, whereupon they 
shall be administered the oath of office. Moreover, in the event at least one of the Town 
Commissioners has been elected by operation of law, the selection of Vice Mayor shall be 
made by the new Town Commission.  

D. The provisions of Charter Section 8(B) shall supersede and prevail over any provisions of 
this Charter Section 105 which are in conflict with section 8(B). 

Page 113



 
 

Commission Communication 
 
 

Agenda #:  
 
 
Date: September 12, 2017 
 
 
Subject:  Employee Health Benefits Contract Renewal for FY 2017-2018 

 

Objective: To provide all eligible employees with Health Insurance coverage(s) and 
other benefits for FY 2017-2018. 

 

Background:  The contract with UnitedHealthcare will expire on September 30, 2017.  

Adams Benefit our insurance agent of record for employee health, disability, life, dental 
and all other related benefit programs was directed by staff to renegotiate the existing 
plan or find an acceptable alternative plan from another carrier with the goal of keeping 
the cost increase to the lowest level possible while minimizing the impact on our employee 
coverages. 

Adams Benefit provided several proposals to staff including Aetna, Av-Med, and 
UnitedHealthcare.  All proposals were analyzed and it was determined that changing the 
health insurance provider from UnitedHealthcare to Aetna and allow employees the 
option to select either a traditional plan or a high deductible health plan (HDHP) plan was 
the most favorable option.    

Health insurance premium rates continue to rise each year as the cost of medical 
treatment increases.  The Town’s Insurance broker negotiated a rate increase of 10 % 
from Aetna. 

The method of payment to our insurance agent of record, Adams Benefit was approved 
by Resolution 15-2319. It established a flat fee payment structure.  Aetna’s broker 

commissions are paid based on the group size and plan enrollment. The broker  

Page 114

yslate-mccloud
Typewritten Text
5B

yslate-mccloud
Typewritten Text



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



ATTACHMENT "A"

Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



5C

Page 142



Page 143



Page 1 of 3 

RESOLUTION NO. 17 - __________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AWARDING RFP NO. 
2015-001 FOR A TURN KEY ENTERPRISE RESOURCE 
PLANNING SOFTWARE SOLUTION TO TYLER 
TECHNOLOGIES, INC.; APPROVING A SOFTWARE AS 
A SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH TYLER 
TECHNOLOGIES, INC. FOR A FIVE YEAR INITIAL 
TERM IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $556,285; 
PROVIDING FOR APPROVAL AND AUTHORIZATION; 
PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, on February 23, 2015, the Town issued Request for Proposal No. 
2015-001 for a Turn Key Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) Software Solution (the 
“RFP”); and 

WHEREAS, the RFP provided that the Town would consider a vendor hosted 
solution, a software as a service licensing model or a traditional Town-hosted solution; 
and 

WHEREAS, in response to the RFP, Tyler Technologies, Inc. (“Tyler”) 
submitted a proposal, dated April 16, 2015, (the “Tyler Proposal”) and the Tyler Proposal 
included multiple options for a turnkey software solution, including a Town hosted 
environment and a vendor hosted environment; and 

WHEREAS, after a lengthy and thorough evaluation process that included 
reviewing the submissions responsive to the RFP, conducting product demonstrations and 
evaluating the multiple solution options presented, the Evaluation Committee determined 
that Tyler’s Proposal for a vendor hosted solution best meets the needs of the Town over 
the long-run; and  

WHEREAS, the Town Attorney’s office and Tyler entered into contract 
negotiations resulting in the Software as a Service Agreement, attached as Exhibit “A” 
(the “Agreement”); and 

WHEREAS, the Evaluation Committee and the Finance Director recommend 
awarding the RFP to Tyler and approving the Agreement with Tyler, attached as Exhibit 
“A”, for an initial five-year term (with three optional one-year renewal periods), with an 
initial one-time design and implementation fee of $157,020 and an annual service 
subscription fee of $79,853 for a total five-year cost in an amount not to exceed 
$556,285; and  

Page 144



Page 2 of 3 

 

 WHEREAS, Town Commission of the Town of Surfside, Florida considers it is 
in the best interest of the Town to award the RFP to Tyler and authorize execution of the 
Agreement with Tyler, attached as Exhibit “A”. 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION 
OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. Recitals.  That the above and foregoing recitals are true and correct 
and are incorporated herein by reference. 

  
 Section 2.  Award of RFP and Agreement Approval. The Town Commission 
hereby approves the award of the RFP to Tyler and the Agreement with Tyler, attached as 
Exhibit “A”, for an initial five-year term in an amount not to exceed $556, 285 

 
 Section 3. Implementation.  The Town Manager and/or designee are hereby 
authorized to take any and all action necessary to implement this Resolution, including 
execution of the Agreement, attached as Exhibit “A”, subject to such non-substantial 
changes as are acceptable to the Town Manager and approved as to form and legal 
sufficiency by the Town Attorney.     

 
Section 4. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately 

upon its adoption. 
 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of September, 2017. 

 
Motion by ____________________________________,  
 
Second by ____________________________________. 
 

FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION 

Commissioner Daniel Gielchinsky  ____ 
Commissioner Michael Karukin  ____ 
Commissioner Tina Paul   ____ 
Vice Mayor Barry Cohen   ____ 
Mayor Daniel Dietch    ____ 

 
____________________________ 

Daniel Dietch, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Sandra Novoa, MMC, Town Clerk 

Page 145



Page 3 of 3 

 

 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY FOR THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY: 

______________________________ 
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L. 
Town Attorney 

Page 146



SOFTWARE AS A SERVICE AGREEMENT 

This Software as a Service Agreement is made between Tyler Technologies, Inc. and Client. 

WHEREAS, Client selected Tyler to provide certain products and services set forth in the Investment 
Summary, including providing Client with access to Tyler’s proprietary software products, and Tyler 
desires to provide such products and services under the terms of this Agreement; 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the mutual covenants and promises set forth 
in this Agreement, Tyler and Client agree as follows: 

SECTION A – DEFINITIONS 

• “Agreement” means this Software as a Services Agreement.
• “Business Travel Policy” means our business travel policy.  A copy of our current Business Travel

Policy is attached as Schedule 1 to Exhibit B.
• “Client” means Town of Surfside.
• “Data” means Client’s data necessary to utilize the Tyler Software.
• “Data Storage Capacity” means the contracted amount of storage capacity for Client’s Data

identified in the Investment Summary.
• “Defect” means a failure of the Tyler Software to substantially conform to the functional

descriptions set forth in our written proposal to Client, or their functional equivalent.  Future
functionality may be updated, modified, or otherwise enhanced through our maintenance and
support services, and the governing functional descriptions for such future functionality will be
set forth in our then-current Documentation.

• “Defined Concurrent Users” means the number of concurrent users that are authorized to use
the SaaS Services.  The Defined Concurrent Users for the Agreement are ten (10) users.

• “Developer” means a third party who owns the intellectual property rights to Third Party
Software.

• “Documentation” means any online or written documentation related to the use or
functionality of the Tyler Software that Tyler provides or otherwise make available to Client,
including instructions, Tyler user guides, manuals and other training or self-help documentation.

• “Effective Date” means the date on which your authorized representative signs the Agreement.
• “Force Majeure” means an event beyond the reasonable control of Client or Tyler, including,

without limitation, governmental action, war, riot or civil commotion, fire, natural disaster, or
any other cause that could not with reasonable diligence be foreseen or prevented by Client or
Tyler.

• “Investment Summary” means the agreed upon cost proposal for the products and services
attached as Exhibit A.

• “Invoicing and Payment Policy” means the invoicing and payment policy.  A copy of Tyler’s
current Invoicing and Payment Policy is attached as Exhibit B.

• “SaaS Fees” means the fees for the SaaS Services identified in the Investment Summary.
• “SaaS Services” means software as a service consisting of system administration, system

Exhibit "A"

Page 147



management, and system monitoring activities that Tyler performs for the Tyler Software, and 
includes the right to access and use the Tyler Software, receive maintenance and support on the 
Tyler Software, including Downtime resolution under the terms of the SLA, and Data storage and 
archiving.  SaaS Services do not include support of an operating system or hardware, support 
outside of our normal business hours, or training, consulting or other professional services. 

•  “SLA” means the service level agreement.  A copy of Tyler’s current SLA is attached hereto as 
Exhibit C. 

• “Statement of Work” means the industry standard implementation plan describing how Tyler’s 
professional services will be provided to implement the Tyler Software, and outlining roles and 
responsibilities of Tyler and Client in connection with that implementation.  The Statement of 
Work is attached as Exhibit E. 

• “Support Call Process” means the support call process applicable to all of Tyler’s customers who 
have licensed the Tyler Software.  A copy of Tyler’s current Support Call Process is attached as 
Schedule 1 to Exhibit C. 

• “Third Party Terms” means, if any, the end user license agreement(s) or similar terms for the 
Third Party Software, as applicable and attached as Exhibit D. 

• “Third Party Hardware” means the third party hardware, if any, identified in the Investment 
Summary. 

• “Third Party Products” means the Third Party Software and Third Party Hardware. 
• “Third Party Software” means the third party software, if any, identified in the Investment 

Summary. 
• “Tyler” means Tyler Technologies, Inc., a Delaware corporation. 
• “Tyler Software” means Tyler’s proprietary software, including any integrations, custom 

modifications, and/or other related interfaces identified in the Investment Summary and 
licensed by Tyler to Client through this Agreement. 
 

SECTION B – SAAS SERVICES 
 
1. Rights Granted.  Tyler grants to Client the non-exclusive, non-assignable limited right to use the SaaS 

Services solely for Client’s internal business purposes for the number of Defined Concurrent Users 
only.  The Tyler Software will be made available to Client according to the terms of the SLA.  Client 
acknowledges that Tyler has no delivery obligations and Tyler will not ship copies of the Tyler 
Software as part of the SaaS Services.  Client may use the SaaS Services to access updates and 
enhancements to the Tyler Software, as further described in Section C(8). 
 

2. SaaS Fees.  Client agrees to pay Tyler the SaaS Fees.  Those amounts are payable in accordance with 
Tyler’s Invoicing and Payment Policy.  The SaaS Fees are based on the number of Defined Concurrent 
Users and amount of Data Storage Capacity.  Client may add additional concurrent users or 
additional data storage capacity on the terms set forth in Section H(1). In the event the Client 
regularly and/or meaningfully exceed the Defined Concurrent Users or Data Storage Capacity, Tyler 
reserves the right to charge Client additional fees commensurate with the overage(s).  

 
3. Ownership.   

 
3.1 Tyler retains all ownership and intellectual property rights to the SaaS Services, the Tyler 

Software, and anything developed by Tyler under this Agreement.  Client does not acquire under 
this Agreement any license to use the Tyler Software in excess of the scope and/or duration of 
the SaaS Services.   

Page 148



 
3.2 The Documentation is licensed to Client and may be used and copied by Client’s employees for 

internal, non-commercial reference purposes only.   
 

3.3 Client retains all ownership and intellectual property rights to the Data.     
 

4. Restrictions. Client may not: (a) make the Tyler Software or Documentation resulting from the SaaS 
Services available in any manner to any third party for use in the third party’s business operations; 
(b) modify, make derivative works of, disassemble, reverse compile, or reverse engineer any part of 
the SaaS Services; (c) access or use the SaaS Services in order to build or support, and/or assist a 
third party in building or supporting, products or services competitive to Tyler; or (d) license, sell, 
rent, lease, transfer, assign, distribute, display, host, outsource, disclose, permit timesharing or 
service bureau use, or otherwise commercially exploit or make the SaaS Services, Tyler Software, or 
Documentation available to any third party other than as expressly permitted by this Agreement. 
 

5. Software Warranty.  Tyler warrants that the Tyler Software will perform without Defects during the 
term of this Agreement.  If the Tyler Software does not perform as warranted, Tyler will use all 
reasonable efforts, consistent with industry standards, to cure the Defect in accordance with the 
maintenance and support process set forth in Section C(8), below, the SLA and our then current 
Support Call Process.   

 
6. SaaS Services.  

 
6.1 Tyler SaaS Services are audited at least yearly in accordance with the AICPA’s Statement on 

Standards for Attestation Engagements (“SSAE”) No. 16, Type 2. Tyler has attained, and will 
maintain, Type II SSAE compliance, or its equivalent, for so long as Client are timely pays for 
SaaS Services.  Upon Client’s written request and execution of a mutually agreeable Non-
Disclosure Agreement (“NDA”), Tyler will provide Client with a summary of our SSAE-16 
compliance report or its equivalent.  Every year thereafter, for so long as the NDA is in effect 
and in which Client makes a written request, Tyler will provide that same information.  
 

6.2 Client will be hosted on shared hardware in a Tyler data center, but in a database dedicated to 
Client, which is inaccessible to Tyler’s other customers.  

 
6.3 Tyler has fully-redundant telecommunications access, electrical power, and the required 

hardware to provide access to the Tyler Software in the event of a disaster or component 
failure.  In the event any of Client’s data has been lost or damaged due to an act or omission of 
Tyler or its subcontractors or due to a defect in Tyler’s software, Tyler will use best commercial 
efforts to restore all the data on servers in accordance with the architectural design’s 
capabilities and with the goal of minimizing any data loss as greatly as possible.  In no case shall 
the recovery point objective (“RPO”) exceed a maximum of twenty-four (24) hours from 
declaration of disaster.  For purposes of this subsection, RPO represents the maximum tolerable 
period during which your data may be lost, measured in relation to a disaster Tyler declares, 
said declaration will not be unreasonably withheld.    

 
 

6.4 In the event Tyler declares a disaster, Tyler’s Recovery Time Objective (“RTO”) is twenty-four 
(24) hours.  For purposes of this subsection, RTO represents the amount of time, after Tyler 
declares a disaster, within which Client’s access to the Tyler Software must be restored. 

Page 149



 
6.5 Tyler conducts annual penetration testing of either the production network and/or web 

application to be performed.   Tyler will maintain industry standard intrusion detection and 
prevention systems to monitor malicious activity in the network and to log and block any such 
activity.  Tyler will provide Client with a written or electronic record of the actions taken by Tyler 
in the event that any unauthorized access to Client’s database(s) is detected as a result of our 
security protocols.  Tyler will undertake an additional security audit, on terms and timing to be 
mutually agreed to by the parties, at your written request.  Client may not attempt to bypass or 
subvert security restrictions in the SaaS Services or environments related to the Tyler Software.  
Unauthorized attempts to access files, passwords or other confidential information, and 
unauthorized vulnerability and penetration test scanning of our network and systems (hosted or 
otherwise) is prohibited without the prior written approval of our IT Security Officer. 

 
6.6 Tyler tests its disaster recovery plan on an annual basis.  Tyler’s standard test is not client-

specific.  Should Client request a client-specific disaster recovery test, Tyler will work with Client 
to schedule and execute such a test on a mutually agreeable schedule.   

 
6.7 Tyler will be responsible for importing back-up and verifying that you can log-in.  Client will be 

responsible for running reports and testing critical processes to verify the returned data.  At 
Client’s written request, Tyler will provide test results to Client within a commercially 
reasonable timeframe after receipt of the request.  

 
6.8 Tyler provides secure data transmission paths from each of Client’s workstations to Tyler 

servers.  
 

6.9 For at least the past ten (10) years, all of Tyler’s employees have undergone criminal background 
checks prior to hire. All employees sign our confidentiality agreement and security policies. 
Tyler’s data centers are accessible only by authorized personnel with a unique key entry. All 
other visitors must be signed in and accompanied by authorized personnel.  Entry attempts to 
the data center are regularly audited by internal staff and external auditors to ensure no 
unauthorized access. 

 
SECTION C – OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 
1. Other Professional Services. Tyler will provide Client the various implementation-related services 

itemized in the Investment Summary and described in the Statement of Work. Tyler will finalize that 
documentation with Client upon execution of this Agreement. 

 
2. Professional Services Fees.  Client agrees to pay Tyler the professional services fees in the amounts 

set forth in the Investment Summary.  Those amounts are payable in accordance with Tyler’s 
Invoicing and Payment Policy.  Client acknowledges that the fees stated in the Investment Summary 
are good-faith estimates of the amount of time and materials required for your implementation.  
Tyler will bill Client the actual fees incurred based on the in-scope services provided to Client.  Any 
discrepancies in the total values set forth in the Investment Summary will be resolved by multiplying 
the applicable hourly rate by the quoted hours. 

 
3. Additional Services.  The Investment Summary contains, and the Statement of Work describes, the 

scope of services and related costs (including programming and/or interface estimates) required for 
the project based on our understanding of the specifications you supplied.  If additional work is 

Page 150



required, or if Client uses or requests additional services, Tyler will provide Client with an addendum 
or change order, as applicable, outlining the costs for the additional work.  The price quotes in the 
addendum or change order will be valid for thirty (30) days from the date of the quote.   
 

4. Cancellation. If travel is required, Tyler will make all reasonable efforts to schedule travel for our 
personnel, including arranging travel reservations, at least two (2) weeks in advance of 
commitments.  Therefore, if Client cancels services less than two (2) weeks in advance (other than 
for Force Majeure or breach by Tyler), Client will be liable for all (a) non-refundable expenses 
incurred by Tyler on your behalf, and (b) daily fees associated with cancelled professional services if 
Tyler is unable to reassign our personnel.  Tyler will make all reasonable efforts to reassign 
personnel in the event you cancel within two (2) weeks of scheduled commitments. 
 

5. Services Warranty.  Tyler will perform the services in a professional, workmanlike manner, 
consistent with industry standards.  In the event Tyler provides services that do not conform to this 
warranty, Tyler will re-perform such services at no additional cost to Client. 

 
6. Site Access and Requirements.  At no cost to Tyler, Client agrees to provide Tyler with full and free 

access, at reasonable times during normal business hours or such other times acceptable to Client, 
to Client’s personnel, facilities, and equipment as may be reasonably necessary for Tyler to provide 
implementation services, subject to any reasonable security protocols or other written policies 
provided to Tyler as of the Effective Date, and thereafter as mutually agreed to by Client and Tyler.   

 
7. Client Assistance.  Client acknowledges that the implementation of the Tyler Software is a 

cooperative process requiring the time and resources of your personnel.  Client agrees to use all 
reasonable efforts to cooperate with and assist Tyler as may be reasonably required to meet the 
agreed upon project deadlines and other milestones for implementation.  This cooperation includes 
at least working with Tyler to schedule the implementation-related services outlined in this 
Agreement.  Tyler will not be liable for failure to meet any deadlines and milestones when such 
failure is due to Force Majeure or to the failure by Client personnel to provide such cooperation and 
assistance (either through action or omission). 

 
8. Maintenance and Support.  For so long as Client timely pays SaaS Fees according to the Invoicing 

and Payment Policy, then in addition to the terms set forth in the SLA and the Support Call Process, 
Tyler will: 

 
8.1 perform maintenance and support obligations in a professional, timely, good, and workmanlike 

manner, consistent with industry standards, to resolve Defects in the Tyler Software (limited to 
the then-current version and the immediately prior version);  
 

8.2 provide telephone support during our established support hours; 
 

8.3 maintain personnel that are sufficiently trained to be familiar with the Tyler Software and Third 
Party Software, if any, in order to provide maintenance and support services; 
 

8.4 make available to you all major and minor releases to the Tyler Software (including updates and 
enhancements) that Tyler makes generally available without additional charge to customers 
who have a maintenance and support agreement in effect; and 

8.5 provide non-Defect resolution support of prior releases of the Tyler Software in accordance with 
our then-current release life cycle policy. 
 

Page 151



Tyler will use all reasonable efforts to perform support services remotely.  Currently, Tyler use a third-
party secure unattended connectivity tool called Bomgar, as well as GotoAssist by Citrix.  Therefore, 
Client agrees to maintain a high-speed internet connection capable of connecting Tyler to your PCs and 
server(s).  Client agrees to provide Tyler with a login account and local administrative privileges as Tyler 
may reasonably require to perform remote services.  Tyler will, at our option, use the secure connection 
to assist with proper diagnosis and resolution, subject to any reasonably applicable security protocols.  If 
Tyler cannot resolve a support issue remotely, Tyler may be required to provide onsite services.  In such 
event, Tyler will be responsible for Tyler’s travel expenses, unless it is determined and documented that 
the reason onsite support was required was a reason outside of Tyler’s control.  Either way, Client 
agrees to provide Tyler with full and free access to the Tyler Software, working space, adequate facilities 
within a reasonable distance from the equipment, and use of machines, attachments, features, or other 
equipment reasonably necessary for Tyler to provide the maintenance and support services, all at no 
charge to Tyler.  Tyler strongly recommends that Client also maintain Client’s VPN for backup 
connectivity purposes. 
 
For the avoidance of doubt, SaaS Fees do not include the following services: (a) onsite support (unless 
Tyler cannot remotely correct a Defect in the Tyler Software, as set forth above); (b) application design; 
(c) other consulting services; or (d) support outside Tyler’s normal business hours as listed in our then-
current Support Call Process, provided that such support is not required as a result of a Defect in the 
Tyler Software.  Requested services such as those outlined in this section will be billed to Client on a 
time and materials basis at our then current rates.   Client must request those services with at least one 
(1) weeks’ advance notice. 

 
SECTION D – THIRD PARTY PRODUCTS 
 
1. Third Party Hardware.  Tyler will sell, deliver, and install onsite the Third Party Hardware, if Client 

has purchased any, for the price set forth in the Investment Summary.  Those amounts are payable 
in accordance with Tyler’s Invoicing and Payment Policy. 
 

2. Third Party Software.  As part of the SaaS Services, Client will receive access to the Third Party 
Software and related documentation for internal business purposes only.  Client’s rights to the Third 
Party Software will be governed by the Third Party Terms.   

 
3. Third Party Products Warranties. 
 

3.1 Tyler is authorized by each Developer to grant access to the Third Party Software. 
 

3.2 The Third Party Hardware will be new and unused, and upon payment in full, you will receive 
free and clear title to the Third Party Hardware. 
 

3.3 Client acknowledges that Tyler is not the manufacturer of the Third Party Products.  Tyler does 
not warrant or guarantee the performance of the Third Party Products.  However, Tyler grants 
and pass through to Client any warranty that Tyler may receive from the Developer or supplier 
of the Third Party Products. 
 

SECTION E - INVOICING AND PAYMENT; INVOICE DISPUTES 
 

1. Invoicing and Payment.  Tyler will invoice you the SaaS Fees and fees for other professional services 
in the Investment Summary per our Invoicing and Payment Policy, subject to Section E(2).     
 

Page 152



2. Invoice Disputes. If Client believes any delivered software or service does not conform to the 
warranties in this Agreement, Client will provide Tyler with written notice within thirty (30) days of 
your receipt of the applicable invoice.  The written notice must contain reasonable detail of the 
issues Client contends are in dispute so that Tyler can confirm the issue and respond to Client’s 
notice with either a justification of the invoice, an adjustment to the invoice, or a proposal 
addressing the issues presented in your notice.  Tyler will work with Client as may be necessary to 
develop an action plan that outlines reasonable steps to be taken by each of Tyler to resolve any 
issues presented in your notice.  Client may withhold payment of the amount(s) actually in dispute, 
and only those amounts, until Tyler completes the action items outlined in the plan.  If Tyler is 
unable to complete the action items outlined in the action plan because of Client’s failure to 
complete the items agreed to be done by Client, then Client will remit full payment of the invoice.  
Tyler reserves the right to suspend delivery of all SaaS Services, including maintenance and support 
services, if Client fails to pay an invoice not disputed as described above within fifteen (15) days of 
notice of Tyler’s intent to do so. 
 

SECTION F – TERM AND TERMINATION 
 
1. Term.  The initial term of this Agreement is five (5) years from the first day of the first month 

following the date SaaS Services and the Tyler Software are made accessible to Client, unless earlier 
terminated as set forth below.  Upon expiration of the initial term, this Agreement may be renewed 
by the City for up to three additional one (1) year renewal terms upon thirty days’ notice to 
Tyler.  Client’s right to access or use the Tyler Software and the SaaS Services will terminate at the 
end of this Agreement.   

 
2. Termination.  This Agreement may be terminated as set forth below.  In the event of termination, 

Client will pay Tyler for all undisputed fees and expenses related to the software, products, and/or 
services you have received, or Tyler has incurred or delivered, prior to the effective date of 
termination.  Disputed fees and expenses in all terminations other than your termination for cause 
must have been submitted as invoice disputes in accordance with Section E(2). 
 
2.1 Failure to Pay SaaS Fees.  Client acknowledges that continued access to the SaaS Services is 

contingent upon Client’s timely payment of SaaS Fees.  If Client fails to timely pay the SaaS Fees, 
Tyler may discontinue the SaaS Services and deny Client access to the Tyler Software.  Tyler may 
also terminate this Agreement if Client does not cure such failure to pay within forty-five (45) 
days of receiving written notice of our intent to terminate. 
 

2.2 For Cause.  If Client believes Tyler has materially breached this Agreement, Client will invoke the 
Dispute Resolution clause set forth in Section H(3).  Client may terminate this Agreement for 
cause in the event Tyler does not cure, or create a mutually agreeable action plan to address, a 
material breach of this Agreement within the thirty (30) day window set forth in Section H(3).   
 

2.3 Force Majeure.  Either party has the right to terminate this Agreement if a Force Majeure event 
suspends performance of the SaaS Services for a period of forty-five (45) days or more. 

 
2.4 Lack of Appropriations.  If Client should not appropriate or otherwise make available funds 

sufficient to utilize the SaaS Services, you may unilaterally terminate this Agreement upon thirty 
(30) days written notice to Tyler.  Client will not be entitled to a refund or offset of previously 
paid, but unused SaaS Fees.  Client agrees not to use termination for lack of appropriations as a 
substitute for termination for convenience. 

Page 153



 
2.5 Client’s Termination for Convenience.  Client may terminate this Agreement for convenience 

upon thirty (30) days written notice.  Upon such termination, Town shall remit payment to Tyler 
for all products, services and expenses incurred or delivered prior to Tyler’s receipt of the 
termination notice.  Town shall not be entitled to a refund or offset of previously paid license 
and other fees. 

SECTION G – INDEMNIFICATION, LIMITATION OF LIABILITY AND INSURANCE 
 
1. Intellectual Property Infringement Indemnification.   

 
1.1 Tyler will indemnify, defend and hold harmless Client and Client’s agents, officials, and 

employees against any third party claim(s) that the Tyler Software or Documentation infringes 
that third party’s patent, copyright, or trademark, or misappropriates its trade secrets, and will 
pay the amount of any resulting adverse final judgment (or settlement to which Tyler consents).  
Upon Client’s receipt of notice of such a claim, Client must notify Tyler promptly in writing of the 
claim and give Tyler sole control over its defense or settlement.  Client agrees to provide Tyler 
with reasonable assistance, cooperation, and information in defending the claim at Tyler’s 
expense. 
 

1.2 Tyler’s obligations under this Section G(1) will not apply to the extent the claim or adverse final 
judgment is based on Client’s use of the Tyler Software in contradiction of this Agreement, 
including with non-licensed third parties, or Client’s willful infringement. 
 

1.3 If Tyler receives information concerning an infringement or misappropriation claim related to 
the Tyler Software, Tyler may, at our expense and without obligation to do so, either: (a) 
procure for Client the right to continue its use; (b) modify it to make it non-infringing; or (c) 
replace it with a functional equivalent, in which case Client will stop running the allegedly 
infringing Tyler Software immediately.  Alternatively, Tyler may decide to litigate the claim to 
judgment, in which case Client may continue to use the Tyler Software consistent with the terms 
of this Agreement. 
 

1.4 If an infringement or misappropriation claim is fully litigated and Client’s use of the Tyler 
Software is enjoined by a court of competent jurisdiction, in addition to paying any adverse final 
judgment (or settlement to which Tyler consents), Tyler will, at our option, either: (a) procure 
the right to continue its use; (b) modify it to make it non-infringing; (c) replace it with a 
functional equivalent; or (d) terminate this Agreement and refund you the prepaid but unused 
SaaS Fees for the year in which the Agreement terminates.  Tyler will pursue those options in 
the order listed herein.  This section provides your exclusive remedy for third party copyright, 
patent, or trademark infringement and trade secret misappropriation claims. 
 

2. General Indemnification. 
 

2.1 Tyler will indemnify, defend and hold harmless Client and Client’s agents, officials, and 
employees from and against any and all third-party claims, losses, liabilities, damages, costs, and 
expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees and costs) for (a) personal injury or property 
damage to the extent caused by Tyler’s negligence or willful misconduct or breach of this 
Agreement; (b) Tyler’s violation of a law applicable to Tyler’s performance under this 
Agreement; and (c) Tyler’s violation of its obligations under Section H(17) of this Agreement.  
Upon Client’s receipt of notice of such a claim, Client must notify Tyler promptly in writing of the 
claim and give Tyler sole control over its defense or settlement.  Client agrees to provide Tyler 

Page 154



with reasonable assistance, cooperation, and information in defending the claim at Tyler’s 
expense. 
 
 

2.2 To the extent permitted by applicable law, and subject to Client’s sovereign immunity 
protection, Client will indemnify and hold harmless Tyler and Tyler’s agents, officials, and 
employees from and against any and all third-party claims, losses, liabilities, damages, costs, and 
expenses (including reasonable attorney's fees and costs) for personal injury or property 
damage to the extent caused by Client’s negligence or willful misconduct. Tyler will notify Client 
promptly in writing of the claim and will give Client sole control over its defense or settlement.  
Tyler agrees to provide Client with reasonable assistance, cooperation, and information in 
defending the claim at Client’s expense. 
 

3. DISCLAIMER.  EXCEPT FOR THE EXPRESS WARRANTIES PROVIDED IN THIS AGREEMENT AND TO 
THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, TYLER HEREBY DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER 
WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, OR STATUTORY, INCLUDING, BUT 
NOT LIMITED TO, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES, DUTIES, OR CONDITIONS OF MERCHANTABILITY OR 
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. 

 
4. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.  EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT, 

TYLER’S LIABILITY FOR DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER BASED ON A 
THEORY OF CONTRACT OR TORT, INCLUDING NEGLIGENCE AND STRICT LIABILITY, SHALL BE 
LIMITED TO ONE AND A HALF TIMES (1.5X) THE TOTAL VALUE OF THIS AGREEMENT.  THE PRICES 
SET FORTH IN THIS AGREEMENT ARE SET IN RELIANCE UPON THIS LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.  THE 
FOREGOING LIMITATION OF LIABILITY SHALL NOT APPLY TO CLAIMS THAT ARE SUBJECT TO 
SECTIONS G(1) AND G(2). 

 
5. EXCLUSION OF CERTAIN DAMAGES.  TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, 

IN NO EVENT SHALL TYLER BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, PUNITIVE, INDIRECT, OR 
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES WHATSOEVER, EVEN IF TYLER HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY 
OF SUCH DAMAGES. 

 
6. Insurance.  During the course of performing services under this Agreement, Tyler agree to maintain 

the following levels of insurance: (a) Commercial General Liability of at least $1,000,000; (b) 
Automobile Liability of at least $1,000,000; (c) Professional Liability of at least $5,000,000 (including 
Cyber Liability coverage); (d) Workers Compensation complying with applicable statutory 
requirements; and (e) Excess/Umbrella Liability of at least $5,000,000.  Tyler will add Client as an 
additional insured to Tyler’s Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability policies, which 
will automatically add Client as an additional insured to our Excess/Umbrella Liability policy as well.  
Tyler will provide Client with copies of certificates of insurance upon Client’s written request. 

 
SECTION H – GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
 
1. Additional Products and Services.  Client may purchase additional products and services at the rates 

set forth in the Investment Summary for twelve (12) months from the Effective Date by executing a 
mutually agreed addendum.  If no rate is provided in the Investment Summary, or those twelve (12) 
months have expired, Client may purchase additional products and services at Tyler’s then-current 
list price, also by executing a mutually agreed addendum.  The terms of this Agreement will control 
any such additional purchase(s), unless otherwise specifically provided in the addendum. 
 

Page 155



2. Optional Items.  Pricing for any listed optional products and services in the Investment Summary will 
be valid for twelve (12) months from the Effective Date. 

 
 

3. Dispute Resolution.  Client agrees to provide Tyler with written notice within thirty (30) days of 
becoming aware of a dispute.  Client agrees to cooperate with Tyler in trying to reasonably resolve 
all disputes, including, if requested by either party, appointing a senior representative to meet and 
engage in good faith negotiations with our appointed senior representative.  Senior representatives 
will convene within thirty (30) days of the written dispute notice, unless otherwise agreed.  All 
meetings and discussions between senior representatives will be deemed confidential settlement 
discussions not subject to disclosure under Federal Rule of Evidence 408 or any similar applicable 
state rule.  If Tyler fails to resolve the dispute, either party may assert their respective rights and 
remedies in a court of competent jurisdiction.  Nothing in this section shall prevent either party from 
seeking necessary injunctive relief during the dispute resolution procedures. 

 
4. Taxes.  The fees in the Investment Summary do not include any taxes, including, without limitation, 

sales, use, or excise tax.  If Client is a tax-exempt entity, Client agrees to provide Tyler with a tax-
exempt certificate.  Otherwise, Tyler will pay all applicable taxes to the proper authorities and Client 
will reimburse Tyler for such taxes.  If Client has a valid direct-pay permit, Client agrees to provide 
Tyler with a copy.  For clarity, Tyler is responsible for paying our income taxes, both federal and 
state, as applicable, arising from our performance of this Agreement.       
  

5. Nondiscrimination.  Tyler will not discriminate against any person employed or applying for 
employment concerning the performance of our responsibilities under this Agreement.  This 
discrimination prohibition will apply to all matters of initial employment, tenure, and terms of 
employment, or otherwise with respect to any matter directly or indirectly relating to employment 
concerning race, color, religion, national origin, age, sex, sexual orientation, ancestry, disability that 
is unrelated to the individual's ability to perform the duties of a particular job or position, height, 
weight, marital status, or political affiliation.  Tyler will post, where appropriate, all notices related 
to nondiscrimination as may be required by applicable law. 
 

6. E-Verify.  Tyler has complied, and will comply, with the E-Verify procedures administered by the U.S. 
Citizenship and Immigration Services Verification Division for all of our employees assigned to your 
project. 

 
7. Subcontractors.  Tyler will not subcontract any services under this Agreement without your prior 

written consent, not to be unreasonably withheld. 
 

8. Binding Effect; No Assignment.  This Agreement shall be binding on, and shall be for the benefit of, 
either your or our successor(s) or permitted assign(s). Neither party may assign this Agreement 
without the prior written consent of the other party; provided, however, Client’s consent is not 
required for an assignment by Tyler as a result of a corporate reorganization, merger, acquisition, or 
purchase of substantially all of our assets. 

 
9. Force Majeure.  Except for Client’s payment obligations, neither party will be liable for delays in 

performing its obligations under this Agreement to the extent that the delay is caused by Force 
Majeure; provided, however, that within ten (10) business days of the Force Majeure event, the 
party whose performance is delayed provides the other party with written notice explaining the 
cause and extent thereof, as well as a request for a reasonable time extension equal to the 
estimated duration of the Force Majeure event.   

Page 156



 
 

10. No Intended Third Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement is entered into solely for the benefit of Client 
and Tyler.  No third party will be deemed a beneficiary of this Agreement, and no third party will 
have the right to make any claim or assert any right under this Agreement.  This provision does not 
affect the rights of third parties under any Third Party Terms. 

 
 
 

11. Entire Agreement; Amendment.  This Agreement represents the entire agreement between Client 
and Tyler with respect to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes any prior agreements, 
understandings, and representations, whether written, oral, expressed, implied, or statutory.  This 
Agreement may only be modified by a written amendment signed by an authorized representative 
of each party. 

 
12. Severability.  If any term or provision of this Agreement is held invalid or unenforceable, the 

remainder of this Agreement will be considered valid and enforceable to the fullest extent 
permitted by law. 
 

13. No Waiver.  In the event that the terms and conditions of this Agreement are not strictly enforced 
by either party, such non-enforcement will not act as or be deemed to act as a waiver or 
modification of this Agreement, nor will such non-enforcement prevent such party from enforcing 
each and every term of this Agreement thereafter. 
 

14. Independent Contractor.  Tyler is an independent contractor for all purposes under this Agreement. 
 

15. Notices.  All notices or communications required or permitted as a part of this Agreement, such as 
notice of an alleged material breach for a termination for cause or a dispute that must be submitted 
to dispute resolution, must be in writing and will be deemed delivered upon the earlier of the 
following: (a) actual receipt by the receiving party; (b) upon receipt by sender of a certified mail, 
return receipt signed by an employee or agent of the receiving party; (c) upon receipt by sender of 
proof of email delivery; or (d) if not actually received, five (5) days after deposit with the United 
States Postal Service authorized mail center with proper postage (certified mail, return receipt 
requested) affixed and addressed to the other party at the address set forth on the signature page 
hereto or such other address as the party may have designated by proper notice.  The consequences 
for the failure to receive a notice due to improper notification by the intended receiving party of a 
change in address will be borne by the intended receiving party. 

 
16. Client Lists.  Client agrees that Tyler may identify you by name in client lists, marketing 

presentations, and promotional materials. 
 

17. Confidentiality.  Both parties recognize that their respective employees and agents, in the course of 
performance of this Agreement, may be exposed to confidential information and that disclosure of 
such information could violate rights to private individuals and entities, including the parties.  
Confidential information is nonpublic information that a reasonable person would believe to be 
confidential and includes, without limitation, personal identifying information, trade secrets and 
other information deemed confidential under applicable Florida law.  Each party agrees that it will 
not disclose any confidential information of any party, including any private individuals and entities, 
and further agrees to take all reasonable and appropriate action to prevent such disclosure by its 
employees or agents.  The confidentiality covenants contained herein will survive the termination or 
cancellation of this Agreement.  This obligation of confidentiality will not apply to information that: 

 

Page 157



(a) is in the public domain, either at the time of disclosure or afterwards, except by breach of 
this Agreement by a party or its employees or agents; 

(b) a party can establish by reasonable proof was in that party's possession at the time of initial 
disclosure; 

(c) a party receives from a third party who has a right to disclose it to the receiving party; or 
(d) is the subject of a legitimate disclosure request under the open records laws or similar 

applicable public disclosure laws governing this Agreement; provided, however, that in the 
event you receive an open records or other similar applicable request, you will give Tyler 
prompt notice and otherwise perform the functions required by applicable law.   

 
18. Business License.  In the event a local business license or tax is required for Tyler to perform services 

hereunder, Client will promptly notify Tyler and provide Tyler with the necessary paperwork and/or 
contact information so that Tyler may timely obtain such license or pay such tax. 
 

19. Governing Law.  This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of 
the state of Florida, without regard to its rules on conflicts of law. Venue shall be in Miami-Dade 
County or, if appropriate for the claim, the United States Federal District Court – Southern District of 
Florida. 
 

20. Multiple Originals and Authorized Signatures.  This Agreement may be executed in multiple 
originals, any of which will be independently treated as an original document.  Any electronic, faxed, 
scanned, photocopied, or similarly reproduced signature on this Agreement or any amendment 
hereto will be deemed an original signature and will be fully enforceable as if an original signature.  
Each party represents to the other that the signatory set forth below is duly authorized to bind that 
party to this Agreement. 
 

21. Cooperative Procurement.  To the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, Tyler agrees that 
this Agreement may be used as a cooperative procurement vehicle by eligible jurisdictions.  Tyler 
reserves the right to negotiate and customize the terms and conditions set forth herein, including 
but not limited to pricing, to the scope and circumstances of that cooperative procurement. 
 

22. Non-Discrimination.  Tyler will comply with Section 3-1.1 “Non-discrimination contract 
requirements; waiver” of the Town of Surfside Code. By entering into this Agreement with the 
Client, Tyler represents and affirms that Tyler is not currently engaged in, and will not engage in, a 
boycott as defined in Section 3-1.1 of the Town of Surfside Code of Ordinances. 
 

23. Sovereign Immunity. The Client is a political subdivision of the State of Florida as defined in Section 
768.28, Florida Statutes.  Nothing herein is intended, nor shall it be interpreted or construed, to 
serve as a waiver of sovereign immunity by the Client. 

 
24. Audit Right.  Client may, at its own expense, audit Tyler’s books and record relating directly to this 

Agreement once per year upon one week’s advance written notice to Tyler. 
 

25. Public Record. Tyler shall comply with Florida’s public records laws, each if and as applicable to 
Tyler.   Specifically, Tyler shall: 

(a)      Keep and maintain public records in Tyler’s possession or control in connection with 
Tyler’s performance under this Agreement.    

(b)      Upon request from the Client’s Town Clerk or designee, Tyler shall provide the Client with 

Page 158



a copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a 
reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, Florida 
Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.  

(c) Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public 
records disclosure requirements are not disclosed, except as authorized by law, for the 
duration of the Agreement, and following completion of the Agreement until the records 
are transferred to the Client. 

 
(d)  Upon completion of this Agreement, transfer, at no cost, all public records in the 

possession of Tyler and required by the Client to perform the services under this 
Agreement to the Town Manager or designee, within seven (7) days.  Once the public 
records have been delivered upon completion or termination of this Agreement, Tyler 
shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt 
from public records disclosure requirements.  All such records stored electronically by 
Tyler shall be delivered to the Client, upon request from the Client’s City Clerk, in a format 
that is compatible with the Client’s information technology systems.   
 
IF TYLER HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA 
STATUTES, TO TYLER’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS 
CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT 305-861-4863, 
snovoa@townofsurfsidefl.gov, or by mail:  Town Clerk, 9293 Harding Avenue, Surfside, 
FL 33154. 

 
26. Contract Documents.  This Agreement includes the following exhibits: 
 

Exhibit A Investment Summary 
Exhibit B Invoicing and Payment Policy 

Schedule 1: Business Travel Policy 
Exhibit C Service Level Agreement 

Schedule 1: Support Call Process 
Exhibit D Web Services – Hosted Application Terms 
Exhibit E Statement of Work 

 
[SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]  

Page 159

mailto:snovoa@townofsurfsidefl.gov


IN WITNESS WHEREOF, a duly authorized representative of each party has executed this Agreement as 
of the date(s) set forth below. 
 
Tyler Technologies, Inc.     Town of Surfside 
 
By:       By:       
 
Name:       Name:       
 
Title:       Title:       
 
Date:       Date:       
 
Address for Notices:     Address for Notices: 

Tyler Technologies, Inc. Town of Surfside 
One Tyler Drive 9293 Harding Avenue 
Yarmouth, ME 04096 Surfside, FL 33154 
Attention: Chief Legal Counsel Attention: Town Manager  
 
 COPY To: 
 Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman 
 Town Attorney 
 2525 Ponce de Leon Blvd., Suite 700 
 Coral Gables, FL 33134 

  

Page 160



 
 

Exhibit A 
Investment Summary 

 
The following Investment Summary details the software and services to be delivered by Tyler to Client 
under the Agreement.  This Investment Summary is effective as of the Effective Date.  Capitalized terms 
not otherwise defined will have the meaning assigned to such terms in the Agreement.  
 
 
 

REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

Page 161



Page 162



 

 
  

Page 163



  

Page 164



  

Page 165



  

Page 166



 

Page 167



  

Page 168



  

Page 169



 

 
 

Exhibit B 
Invoicing and Payment Policy 

 
Tyler will provide Client with the software and services set forth in the Investment Summary of the 
Agreement.  Capitalized terms not otherwise defined will have the meaning assigned to such terms in 
the Agreement. 
 
Invoicing:  Tyler will invoice Client for the applicable software and services in the Investment Summary 
as set forth below.  Client’s rights to dispute any invoice are set forth in the Agreement. 
 

1. SaaS Fees.  SaaS Fees are invoiced on an annual basis, beginning on the commencement of the 
initial term as set forth in Section F (1) of this Agreement.  Client’s annual SaaS fees for the initial 
five (5) year term are fixed and set forth in the Investment Summary. Upon expiration of the 
initial term, Client’s annual SaaS fees will be at Tyler’s then-current rates, provided however that 
in no event shall Client’s annual SaaS fees increase by more than 5% from the Client’s prior year 
SaaS fees for the three (3) year period following the initial five (5) year term.    
 

2. Other Tyler Software and Services. 
 
2.1 Project Planning Services: Project planning services are invoiced upon delivery of the 

implementation planning document. 
 

2.2 VPN Device: The fee for the VPN device will be invoiced upon installation of the VPN. 
 
2.3 Implementation and Other Professional Services (including training): Implementation and 

other professional services (including training) are billed and invoiced as delivered, at the 
rates set forth in the Investment Summary.   
 

2.4 Consulting Services: If Client has purchased any Business Process Consulting services, if they 
have been quoted as fixed-fee services, they will be invoiced 50% upon your acceptance of 
the Business System Design document, by module, and 50% upon your acceptance of 
custom desktop procedures, by module.  If Client has purchased any Business Process 
Consulting services and they are quoted as an estimate, then Tyler will bill Client the actual 
services delivered on a time and materials basis. 

 
2.5 Conversions: Fixed-fee conversions are invoiced 50% upon initial delivery of the converted 

data, by conversion option, and 50% upon Client acceptance to load the converted data into 
Live/Production environment, by conversion option.  Where conversions are quoted as 
estimated, Tyler will bill you the actual services delivered on a time and materials basis. 

 
2.6 Requested Modifications to the Tyler Software: Requested modifications to the Tyler 

Software are invoiced 50% upon delivery of specifications and 50% upon delivery of the 
applicable modification.  Client must report any failure of the modification to conform to the 

Page 170



specifications within thirty (30) days of delivery; otherwise, the modification will be deemed 
to be in compliance with the specifications after the 30-day window has passed.  Client may 
still report Defects to Tyler as set forth in the Maintenance and Support Agreement. 

 
2.7 Other Fixed Price Services: Other fixed price services are invoiced upon complete delivery of 

the service. For the avoidance of doubt, where “Project Planning Services” are provided, 
payment will be due upon delivery of the Implementation Planning document. 

 
2.8 Change Management Services: If Client has  purchased any change management services, 

those services will be invoiced in the following amounts and upon the following milestones: 
 

Acceptance of Change Management Discovery Analysis 15% 
Delivery of Change Management Plan and Strategy Presentation 10% 
Acceptance of Executive Playbook 15% 
Acceptance of Resistance Management Plan 15% 
Acceptance of Procedural Change Communications Plan 10% 
Change Management Coach Training 20% 
Change Management After-Action Review 15% 

 
 

3. Third Party Products.   
 

3.1 Third Party Software License Fees: License fees for Third Party Software, if any, are invoiced 
when Tyler makes it available to Client for downloading. 

 
3.2 Third Party Software Maintenance: The first year maintenance for the Third Party Software 

is invoiced when Tyler makes it available to Client for downloading. 
 
3.3 Third Party Hardware: Third Party Hardware costs, if any, are invoiced upon delivery. 
 

4. Expenses.  The service rates in the Investment Summary do not include travel expenses.  
Expenses will be billed as incurred and only in accordance with our then-current Business Travel 
Policy, plus a 10% travel agency processing fee.  Tyler’s current Business Travel Policy is attached 
to this Exhibit B at Schedule 1.  Copies of receipts will be provided upon request; Tyler reserves 
the right to charge Client an administrative fee depending on the extent of your requests.  
Receipts for miscellaneous items less than twenty-five dollars and mileage logs are not available.   
 

Payment.  Payment for undisputed invoices is due within forty-five (45) days of the invoice date.  Tyler 
prefers to receive payments electronically.  Tyler’s electronic payment information is: 
 

Bank:  Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. 
  420 Montgomery 
  San Francisco, CA 94104 
ABA:  121000248 
Account: 4124302472 
Beneficiary: Tyler Technologies, Inc. – Operating  
  

 

Page 171



 
 

Exhibit B 
Schedule 1 

Business Travel Policy 
 

1. Air Travel 
 

A. Reservations & Tickets 
 
 Tyler’s Travel Management Company (TMC) will provide an employee with a direct flight within 

two hours before or after the requested departure time, assuming that flight does not add more 
than three hours to the employee’s total trip duration and the fare is within $100 (each way) of 
the lowest logical fare.  If a net savings of $200 or more (each way) is possible through a 
connecting flight that is within two hours before or after the requested departure time and that 
does not add more than three hours to the employee’s total trip duration, the connecting flight 
should be accepted.   

 
 Employees are encouraged to make advanced reservations to take full advantage of discount 

opportunities.  Employees should use all reasonable efforts to make travel arrangements at least 
two (2) weeks in advance of commitments.  A seven-day advance booking requirement is 
mandatory.  When booking less than seven days in advance, management approval will be 
required.   

 
 Except in the case of international travel where a segment of continuous air travel is scheduled to 

exceed six hours, only economy or coach class seating is reimbursable. 
 

B. Baggage Fees 
 
Reimbursement of personal baggage charges are based on trip duration as follows: 
 

• Up to five days = one checked bag 
• Six or more days = two checked bags 

 
Baggage fees for sports equipment are not reimbursable. 

 
2. Ground Transportation 

 
A. Private Automobile 

 
 Mileage Allowance – Business use of an employee’s private automobile will be reimbursed at the 

current IRS allowable rate, plus out of pocket costs for tolls and parking.  Mileage will be calculated 
by using the employee's office as the starting and ending point, in compliance with IRS regulations.  
Employees who have been designated a home office should calculate miles from their home. 

 

Page 172



B. Rental Car 

 
 Employees are authorized to rent cars only in conjunction with air travel when cost, convenience, 

and the specific situation reasonably require their use.  When renting a car for Tyler business, 
employees should select a “mid-size” or “intermediate” car.  “Full” size cars may be rented when 
three or more employees are traveling together.  Tyler carries leased vehicle coverage for business 
car rentals; additional insurance on the rental agreement should be declined. 

 
C. Public Transportation 

 
Taxi or airport limousine services may be considered when traveling in and around cities or to and 
from airports when less expensive means of transportation are unavailable or impractical.  The 
actual fare plus a reasonable tip (15-18%) are reimbursable.  In the case of a free hotel shuttle to 
the airport, tips are included in the per diem rates and will not be reimbursed separately. 
 

D. Parking & Tolls 
 
 When parking at the airport, employees must use longer term parking areas that are measured in 

days as opposed to hours.  Park and fly options located near some airports may also be used.  For 
extended trips that would result in excessive parking charges, public transportation to/from the 
airport should be considered.  Tolls will be reimbursed when receipts are presented. 

 
3. Lodging 
 
 Tyler’s TMC will select hotel chains that are well established, reasonable in price, and conveniently 

located in relation to the traveler's work assignment.  Typical hotel chains include Courtyard, 
Fairfield Inn, Hampton Inn, and Holiday Inn Express.  If the employee has a discount rate with a local 
hotel, the hotel reservation should note that discount and the employee should confirm the lower 
rate with the hotel upon arrival.  Employee memberships in travel clubs such as AAA should be 
noted in their travel profiles so that the employee can take advantage of any lower club rates.  

 
 “No shows” or cancellation fees are not reimbursable if the employee does not comply with the 

hotel’s cancellation policy. 
 
 Tips for maids and other hotel staff are included in the per diem rate and are not reimbursed 

separately. 
 
4. Meals and Incidental Expenses 
 
 Employee meals and incidental expenses while on travel status are in accordance with the federal 

per diem rates published by the General Services Administration.  Incidental expenses include tips 
to maids, hotel staff, and shuttle drivers and other minor travel expenses.  Per diem rates are 
available at www.gsa.gov/perdiem.   

 

A. Overnight Travel 

 For each full day of travel, all three meals are reimbursable.  Per diems on the first and last day of a 

Page 173

http://www.gsa.gov/perdiem


trip are governed as set forth below.   
  

Departure Day 
 
 Depart before 12:00 noon   Lunch and dinner 
 Depart after 12:00 noon     Dinner 
  
 Return Day 
 
 Return before 12:00 noon   Breakfast 
 Return between 12:00 noon & 7:00 p.m.  Breakfast and lunch 
 Return after 7:00 p.m.*     Breakfast, lunch and dinner 
 
 *7:00 p.m. is defined as direct travel time and does not include time taken to stop for dinner 
 
 The reimbursement rates for individual meals are calculated as a percentage of the full day per 

diem as follows: 
 

• Breakfast 15% 
• Lunch  25% 
• Dinner  60% 

 
 B. Same Day Travel 
 
 Employees traveling at least 100 miles to a site and returning in the same day are eligible to claim 

lunch on an expense report.  Employees on same day travel status are eligible to claim dinner in the 
event they return home after 7:00 p.m.* 

 
 *7:00 p.m. is defined as direct travel time and does not include time taken to stop for dinner 
 
5. Internet Access – Hotels and Airports 

 
Employees who travel may need to access their e-mail at night.  Many hotels provide free high 
speed internet access and Tyler employees are encouraged to use such hotels whenever possible.  
If an employee’s hotel charges for internet access it is reimbursable up to $10.00 per day.  Charges 
for internet access at airports are not reimbursable. 

 
  

Page 174



 
 

 

 

Exhibit C 

SERVICE LEVEL AGREEMENT 

 

I.  Agreement Overview 

This SLA operates in conjunction with, and does not supersede or replace any part of, the Agreement.  It 
outlines the information technology service levels that Tyler will provide to Client to ensure the 
availability of the application services that Client has requested Tyler to provide.  All other support 
services are documented in the Support Call Process.   
 
II. Definitions. Except as defined below, all defined terms have the meaning set forth in the 
Agreement. 
 
Attainment: The percentage of time the Tyler Software is available during a calendar quarter, with 
percentages rounded to the nearest whole number.  

Client Error Incident: Any service unavailability resulting from your applications, content or equipment, 
or the acts or omissions of any of your service users or third-party providers over whom Tyler exercises 
no control.   

Downtime: Those minutes during which the Tyler Software is not available for your use.  Downtime does 
not include those instances in which only a Defect is present. 

Service Availability:  The total number of minutes in a calendar quarter that the Tyler Software is capable 
of receiving, processing, and responding to requests, excluding maintenance windows, Client Error 
Incidents and Force Majeure. 

III.  Service Availability 

The Service Availability of the Tyler Software is intended to be 24/7/365.  Tyler set Service Availability 
goals and measures whether Tyler has met those goals by tracking Attainment. 

a. Your Responsibilities 

Whenever Client experiences Downtime, Client must make a support call according to the procedures 
outlined in the Support Call Process.  Client will receive a support incident number. 

Client must document, in writing, all Downtime that Client has experienced during a calendar quarter.  
Client must deliver such documentation to Tyler within 30 days of a quarter’s end. 

The documentation Client provides must evidence the Downtime clearly and convincingly.  It must 
include, for example, the support incident number(s) and the date, time and duration of the 
Downtime(s).    

b. Our Responsibilities 

When Tyler’s support team receives a call from Client that Downtime has occurred or is occurring, Tyler 
will work with you to identify the cause of the Downtime (including whether it may be the result of a 

Page 175



Client Error Incident or Force Majeure).  Tyler will also work with Client to resume normal operations. 

Upon timely receipt of your Downtime report, Tyler will compare that report to our own outage logs and 
support tickets to confirm that Downtime for which Tyler is responsible indeed occurred. 

Tyler will respond to Client’sDowntime report within 30 day(s) of receipt.  To the extent Tyler has 
confirmed Downtime for which Tyler is responsible, Tyler will provide Client with the relief set forth 
below. 

c.  Client Relief 

When a Service Availability goal is not met due to confirmed Downtime, Tyler will provide Client with 
relief that corresponds to the percentage amount by which that goal was not achieved, as set forth in 
the Client Relief Schedule below.   

Notwithstanding the above, the total amount of all relief that would be due under this SLA per quarter 
will not exceed 5% of one quarter of the then-current SaaS Fee.  The total credits confirmed by Tyler in 
one or more quarters of a billing cycle will be applied to the SaaS Fee for the next billing cycle.  Issuing of 
such credit does not relieve Tyler of our obligations under the Agreement to correct the problem which 
created the service interruption.     

Every quarter, Tyler will compare confirmed Downtime to Service Availability.  In the event actual 
Attainment does not meet the targeted Attainment, the following Client relief will apply, on a quarterly 
basis: 

Targeted Attainment Actual Attainment Client Relief 

100% 98-99% Remedial action will be taken. 

100% 95-97% 4% credit of fee for affected calendar quarter 
will be posted to next billing cycle 

100% <95% 5% credit of fee for affected calendar quarter 
will be posted to next billing cycle 

 

Client may request a report from Tyler that documents the preceding quarter’s Service Availability, 
Downtime, any remedial actions that have been/will be taken, and any credits that may be issued. 

IV. Applicability 

The commitments set forth in this SLA do not apply during maintenance windows, Client Error 
Incidents, and Force Majeure.   

Tyler performs maintenance during limited windows that are historically known to be reliably low-
traffic times.  If and when maintenance is predicted to occur during periods of higher traffic, Tyler will 
provide advance notice of those windows and will coordinate to the greatest extent possible with 
Client. 

V. Force Majeure 

Client will not hold Tyler responsible for not meeting service levels outlined in this SLA to the extent any 
failure to do so is caused by Force Majeure.  In the event of Force Majeure, Tyler will file with Client a 
signed request that said failure be excused.  That writing will at least include the essential details and 

Page 176



circumstances supporting our request for relief pursuant to this Section. Client will not unreasonably 
withhold its acceptance of such a request.  

Page 177



 

Exhibit C 
Schedule 1 
Support Call Process 

 
 
Support Channels 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. provides the following channels of software support:   

(1) Tyler Community – an on-line resource, Tyler Community provides a venue for all Tyler clients with 
current maintenance agreements to collaborate with one another, share best practices and resources, 
and access documentation.   

(2) On-line submission (portal) – for less urgent and functionality-based questions, users may create 
unlimited support incidents through the customer relationship management portal available at the 
Tyler Technologies website.   

(3) Email – for less urgent situations, users may submit unlimited emails directly to the software support 
group. 

(4) Telephone – for urgent or complex questions, users receive toll-free, unlimited telephone software 
support.  

Support Resources 
A number of additional resources are available to provide a comprehensive and complete support experience:  

(1) Tyler Website – www.tylertech.com – for accessing client tools and other information including 
support contact information.  

(2) Tyler Community – available through login, Tyler Community provides a venue for clients to support 
one another and share best practices and resources.  

(3) Knowledgebase – A fully searchable depository of thousands of documents related to procedures, best 
practices, release information, and job aides.  

(4) Program Updates – where development activity is made available for client consumption 

Support Availability 
Tyler Technologies support is available during the local business hours of 8 AM to 5 PM (Monday – Friday) 
across four US time zones (Pacific, Mountain, Central and Eastern). Clients may receive coverage across these 
time zones. Tyler’s holiday schedule is outlined below. There will be no support coverage on these days.  
New Year’s Day Thanksgiving Day 
Memorial Day Day after Thanksgiving 
Independence Day Christmas Day 
Labor Day  
 
Issue Handling 

Incident Tracking 
Every support incident is logged into Tyler’s Customer Relationship Management System and given a unique 
incident number. This system tracks the history of each incident. The incident tracking number is used to track 
and reference open issues when clients contact support. Clients may track incidents, using the incident 
number, through the portal at Tyler’s website or by calling software support directly.  

Page 178

http://www.tylertech.com/


Incident Priority 
Each incident is assigned a priority number, which corresponds to the client’s needs and deadlines. The client 
is responsible for reasonably setting the priority of the incident per the chart below. This chart is not intended 
to address every type of support incident, and certain “characteristics” may or may not apply depending on 
whether the Tyler software has been deployed on customer infrastructure or the Tyler cloud. The goal is to 
help guide the client towards clearly understanding and communicating the importance of the issue and to 
describe generally expected responses and resolutions.   
 

Priority 
Level Characteristics of Support Incident Resolution Targets 

1 
Critical 

Support incident that causes (a) 
complete application failure or 
application unavailability; (b) 
application failure or unavailability in 
one or more of the client’s remote 
location; or (c) systemic loss of multiple 
essential system functions. 

Tyler shall provide an initial response to Priority Level 1 
incidents within one (1) business hour of receipt of the 
support incident.  Tyler shall use commercially 
reasonable efforts to resolve such support incidents or 
provide a circumvention procedure within one (1) 
business day.  For non-hosted customers, Tyler’s 
responsibility for lost or corrupted data is limited to 
assisting the client in restoring its last available 
database. 

2 
High 

Support incident that causes (a) 
repeated, consistent failure of essential 
functionality affecting more than one 
user or (b) loss or corruption of data. 

Tyler shall provide an initial response to Priority Level 2 
incidents within four (4) business hours of receipt of the 
support incident.  Tyler shall use commercially 
reasonable efforts to resolve such support incidents or 
provide a circumvention procedure within ten (10) 
business days.  For non-hosted customers, Tyler’s 
responsibility for loss or corrupted data is limited to 
assisting the client in restoring its last available 
database. 

3 
Medium 

Priority Level 1 incident with an existing 
circumvention procedure, or a Priority 
Level 2 incident that affects only one 
user or for which there is an existing 
circumvention procedure. 

Tyler shall provide an initial response to Priority Level 3 
incidents within one (1) business day of receipt of the 
support incident.  Tyler shall use commercially 
reasonable efforts to resolve such support incidents 
without the need for a circumvention procedure with 
the next published maintenance update or service 
pack.  For non-hosted customers, Tyler’s responsibility 
for lost or corrupted data is limited to assisting the 
client in restoring its last available database. 

4 
Non-

critical 

Support incident that causes failure of 
non-essential functionality or a 
cosmetic or other issue that does not 
qualify as any other Priority Level. 

Tyler shall provide an initial response to Priority Level 4 
incidents within two (2) business days.  Tyler shall use 
commercially reasonable efforts to resolve such support 
incidents, as well as cosmetic issues, with a future 
version release. 

Page 179



 
Incident Escalation  
Tyler Technology’s software support consists of four levels of personnel:  

(1) Level 1: front-line representatives 
(2) Level 2: more senior in their support role, they assist front-line representatives and take on escalated 

issues 
(3) Level 3: assist in incident escalations and specialized client issues 
(4) Level 4: responsible for the management of support teams for either a single product or a product 

group 

If a client feels they are not receiving the service needed, they may contact the appropriate Software Support 
Manager. After receiving the incident tracking number, the manager will follow up on the open issue and 
determine the necessary action to meet the client’s needs. 
On occasion, the priority or immediacy of a software support incident may change after initiation. Tyler 
encourages clients to communicate the level of urgency or priority of software support issues so that Tyler can 
respond appropriately. A software support incident can be escalated by any of the following methods:  

(1) Telephone – for immediate response, call toll-free to either escalate an incident’s priority or to 
escalate an issue through management channels as described above.  

(2) Email – clients can send an email to software support in order to escalate the priority of an issue 
(3) On-line Support Incident Portal – clients can also escalate the priority of an issue by logging into the 

client incident portal and referencing the appropriate incident tracking number.  

Remote Support Tool 
Some support calls require further analysis of the client’s database, process or setup to diagnose a problem or 
to assist with a question. Tyler will, at its discretion, use an industry-standard remote support tool. Support is 
able to quickly connect to the client’s desktop and view the site’s setup, diagnose problems, or assist with 
screen navigation. More information about the remote support tool Tyler uses is available upon request.     
 
  

Page 180



 
 
 

Exhibit D 
Web Services – Hosted Application Terms 

 
Tyler Technologies, Inc. will provide Client with the hosted applications indicated in the Investment 
Summary of your License and Services Agreement. The terms and conditions contained in this document 
only apply to our provision of those applications. Capitalized terms not otherwise defined will have the 
meaning assigned to such terms in your License and Services Agreement.  

 
1. Hosted Applications. Tyler will provide Client with any of the following hosted applications as indicated in the 

Investment Summary. 

1.1. Web Services:  Tyler’s Web Services are designed to enable Client to easily establish a presence on the 
Internet.  Tyler’s Web Hosting and Design is composed of Tyler’s Web Hosting and Design Publishing 
Component and other miscellaneous components.  These components may be used independently or 
in conjunction with each other. 

1.2. Utility Billing On-Line:  Tyler’s Utility Billing On-Line Component allows Client to make available certain 
information from Client’s utility billing system to citizens with Internet access. This information is posted 
to your web site, which is hosted on our web server.  With the proper security clearance, citizens with 
Internet access have access to the data which can include:  Consumption information,  

2. Term. Tyler will grant Client access to the hosted applications provided you timely pay all associated fees. The 
term of Client’s subscription will commence on the Effective Date and will continue for three (3) years. 
Thereafter, the term will be automatically extended in separate one (1) year periods. Either party may cancel 
this subscription to the hosted applications upon sixty (60) days written notice to the other.  

3. Nature of Website. Tyler shall maintain a website for Client, allowing a user to access relevant data provided 
by you. This data may include information from your Tyler Software system. This website will be capable of 
accepting payments via Secured Socket Layer (SSL) encryption and credit card or debit card charge. 

4. Data Procurement. Client must set up a merchant account with Electronic Transaction System Corporation or 
authorized.net to be solely used for our Web Service transactions. The merchant account must be set up to 
fund to Client’s bank account. Client is responsible for all fees and expenses of the merchant account. Client 
must install and run Tyler Web Services to allow us to transfer the necessary data from your system to our 
servers on a real time basis. Certain information, such as payment information, must be conveyed to you. We 
will be responsible for transferring such information to you on a regular basis. Tyler Web Services requires a 
dedicated IP address; assignment of this address is your responsibility. While Tyler assumes responsibility for 
data transfer, Tyler are not responsible for accuracy of data transferred.  

5. Limited License. Client’s license to use the hosted applications will automatically terminate upon cancellation 
of this subscription, or upon your failure to timely pay fees or otherwise comply with these terms and 
conditions. 

Page 181



6. Ownership of Data. All data Client provides to Tyler for the purposes of generating the website shall remain 
Client’s property. Should Client terminate its subscription, Tyler shall return to Client any such data in our 
possession.  

7. Fees. Client agrees to pay the initial fee and annual subscription fees as stated in the Investment Summary 
and in accordance with our Invoicing and Payment Policy. Tyler may increase the per-transaction fee for online 
payment no more than once per year with sixty (60) days prior written notice. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 182



 
 

Exhibit E 
Statement of Work 

TO BE INSERTED 

 

Page 183



5D

Page 184



Page 185



Page 186



Page 187



Page 188



Page 189



Page 190



Page 191



Page 192



Page 193



Page 194



Page 195



5E

Page 196



Page 197



Page 198



Page 199



Page 200

snovoa
Sticky Note



Page 201



Page 202



Page 203



Page 204



Page 205



Page 1 of 2 

RESOLUTION NO. 17 - ________ 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA AUTHORIZING THE 
EXPENDITURE FROM THE 2016-2017 FISCAL YEAR 
BUDGET IN THE TOTAL AMOUNT OF $16,041.60; 
PROVIDING FOR IMPLEMENTATION; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, on September 10, 2009, the Town entered into an interlocal agreement with 
Miami-Dade County (the “Agreement”) for bi-weekly residential curbside recycling utilizing 95 
gallon containers; and 

WHEREAS, the Agreement allowed either party to terminate the Agreement, without 
cause upon providing 30 days’ notice prior to the termination date; and  

WHEREAS, the Agreement required that if the Town withdrew from the agreement 
prior to the final debt payment for the recycling containers, the Town was required to pay the 
remaining amortized cost of the containers; and 

WHEREAS, on June 9, 2015 the Town Commission approved the termination of the 
Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, the final buy out cost of the collection containers was omitted from the 
termination process and a final payment of $16,041.60 is due to complete the purchase of the 95 
gallon recycling containers; and 

WHEREAS, the necessary funds are available in the 2016-2017 budget for Solid Waste 
Account No. 403-4000-534-4911; and   

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Town to authorize final payment for the 
curbside recycling containers consistent with the original terms of the Agreement, in the amount 
of $16,041.60.           

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE 
TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. Recitals. The above recitals are true and correct and incorporated into this 
Resolution by this reference. 

Section 2. Approval and Authorization. The Town Commission hereby authorizes the 
expenditure of funds from the fiscal year 2016-2017 in the total amount of $16,041.60 from the 
Solid Waste Account No. 403-4000-534-4911. 

Page 206



Page 2 of 2 
 

Section 3. Implementation. The Town Manager is hereby authorized to take any and all 
action necessary to implement this Resolution.  

 
Section 4. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its 

adoption. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 12th day of September, 2017. 
 
Motion by ______________________________________, 
 
Second by ______________________________________. 
 
FINAL VOTE ON ADOPTION 

Commissioner Daniel Gielchinsky  ____ 
Commissioner Michael Karukin  ____ 
Commissioner Tina Paul   ____ 
Vice Mayor Barry Cohen   ____ 
Mayor Daniel Dietch    ____ 

 
____________________________ 
Daniel Dietch, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Sandra Novoa, MMC, Town Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND 
LEGAL SUFFICIENCY FOR THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE ONLY: 

______________________________ 
Weiss Serota Helfman Cole & Bierman, P.L. 
Town Attorney 

Page 207



5F

Page 208



Page 209



Exhibit "1"

Page 210



Page 211



Page 212



Page 213



Page 214



ATTACHMENT "A"

Page 215



Page 216



Page 217



Page 218



Page 219



Page 220



Page 221



Page 222



Page 223



Page 224



Page 225



Page 226



9A

Page 227



Page 228



9B

Page 229



Page 230



Town of Surfside 
Town Commission Meeting 

September 12, 2017 
7:00 pm 

Town Hall Commission Chambers ‐ 9293 Harding Ave, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

DISCUSSION ITEM MEMORANDUM 

Page 1 of 1 

Agenda #: 

Date:    September 12, 2017 

From:    Michael Karukin 

Subject:  Elimination of the Sustainability Sub Committee and transferring responsibility to 

Planning and Zoning (P&Z) Board 

Objective:  Eliminate the sustainability subcommittee and transfer all work to P&Z 

Consideration:  On June 14th 2016 the Town Commission created the Sustainability 

Subcommittee of the Planning and Zoning Board (Resolution No. 16‐2378).  The primary 

objective was to provide to the Town Planner recommendations for relevant content needed 

for compliance with Florida Statutes to address sea level rise as a new, required element in the 

Comprehensive Plan. 

The Town Planner advised she has what she needs from the subcommittee to complete work 

on the Comprehensive Plan.  Therefore, the subcommittee has met its primary objective.   

Considering that our existing P&Z board is already responsible for recommendations relating to 

all zoning matters and their Chair and other members have repeatedly expressed interest in 

pursuing “policies and programs that strengthen the resiliency of our community”, it seems 

that an additional committee to cover the same topic is redundant and inefficient. 

Consequently, since we have an existing chartered board that is ready, willing and able to do 

the work and has the resources and business processes already in place, an additional 

committee seems unnecessary. Transferring the goals of the sustainability subcommittee to the 

existing P&Z Board would reduce administrative burden on all of us without abandoning goals, 

avoids redundancy and gains operational efficiency (i.e., less bureaucracy).  

Recommendation:  Direct the Town Manager to decommission the sustainability subcommittee 
and transfer all work product to P & Z.  

9C

Page 231



Town of Surfside 
Town Commission Meeting 

September 12, 2017 
7:00 pm 

Town Hall Commission Chambers ‐ 9293 Harding Avenue, 2nd Floor 
Surfside, FL  33154 

Page 1 of 1 

Agenda #: 

Date:    September 12, 2017 

From:    Daniel Dietch, Mayor 

Subject:  Texting While Driving Urging Resolution 

Objective:  To seek direction from the Town Commission whether it desires the Town Attorney to 
prepare an urging resolution to the Florida Legislature supporting Representative Stark’s initiative 
to make texting while driving a primary offense. 

Consideration:  As noted in the attached letter from Representative Stark, texting while driving is 
an unsafe practice that contributes to unnecessary vehicular accidents and injuries.  Currently, 
Florida is one of four states that considers texting while driving a secondary offense, meaning that 
you must be pulled over for a primary offense to also be cited for texting while driving.  Thus, the 
current law is very difficult to enforce and does little to discourage the unsafe activity. 

Recommendation:  Direct the Town Attorney to prepare an urging resolution to the Florida 
Legislature supporting Representative Stark’s initiative to make texting while driving a primary 
offense. 

attachment 

9E

Page 232



Page 233


	Agenda
	3A - Minutes
	3B - Town Manager's Report
	3C - Town Attorney's Report
	3D - Committee Reports
	3E Strategic Miami Area Rapid Transit (SMART) Plan Resolution
	4B1 - Pension Ordinance adopting Chapter 185 minimum benefits for police officers along with other changes to the ordinance
	4B2 - Crossover of the Dune
	4B3 - Amending Article VI - Rules of Procedure for Town Meetings
	4B4 - Water, Sewer and Stormwater Rate Adjustment
	5A - Four Year Staggered Terms for the Town Commission and Retain Two Year Term for Mayor
	5B - Employee Health Benefits Contract Renewal for FY 2017-2018
	5C - Tyler Technologies ERP Software Systems
	5D - Beach Renourishment Funding Resolution
	5E - Fullfillment of Amortized Cost for Recycling Containers per Interlocal Agreement
	5F - Request to Release Covenant Restricting Property Use for 200 96th Street 
	9A - Walkability and Pedestrian Improvements Trial Update 
	9B - Discussion Regarding Regulation of Medical Marijuana Dispensaries
	9C - Elimination of the Sustainability Sub Committee and Transfering responsibility to Planning and Zoning Board
	9E - Texting While Driving Resolution
	2017-09-18 Agenda.pdf
	A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, CALLING FOR A MARCH 20, 2018 TOWN OF SURFSIDE SPECIAL ELECTION, FOR THE PURPOSE OF SUBMITTING TO THE ELECTORATE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, A  PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE TOWN C...

	2017-09-18 Agenda 1.pdf
	A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, CALLING FOR A MARCH 20, 2018 TOWN OF SURFSIDE SPECIAL ELECTION, FOR THE PURPOSE OF SUBMITTING TO THE ELECTORATE OF THE TOWN OF SURFSIDE, FLORIDA, A  PROPOSED AMENDMENT TO THE TOWN C...




